
SAFETY AND SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMISSION (SSOC) 
SSOC created by the Public Safety and Services Violence Prevention Act of 2014 (Measure Z) 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, May 20th, 2024  

6:30pm 

1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Oakland, CA 94612 
City Council Chamber, 3rd Floor 

Oversight Commission Members: 

Kelly Cure (D-1), Chair: Omar Farmer (D-2), Paula Hawthorn (D-3), 
Vice Chair: Yoana Tchoukleva (D-4), VACANT (D-5), Samuel Dawit (D6), Gloria 

Bailey-Ray, (D-7), Michael Wallace (Mayoral), Sonya Mehta (At-Large) 

The Oakland Public Safety and Services Oversight Commission encourages public 
participation in the online board meetings. The public may observe and/or participate in 
this meeting in several ways. 

OBSERVE: 

You may appear in person on Monday, May 20th, 2024, at 6:30pm at 
1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Oakland, CA 94612 in Council Chamber 

OR 
To observe, the public may view the televised meeting by viewing 

KTOP channel 10 on Xfinity (Comcast) or ATT Channel 99 and locating 
City of Oakland KTOP – Channel 10 

Please note:  The ZOOM link and access numbers below are to view / listen 
to the meetings only – not for participation. 

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88436690045 

Or One tap mobile : 
+16694449171,84538741892# US
+16699009128,84538741892# US (San Jose)

Or Telephone: 
  Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
+1 669 444 9171 US, +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose), +1 253 205 0468 US
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma), +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston), +1 719 359 4580 US
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC), +1 305 224 1968 US, +1 309 205 3325 US
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago), +1 360 209 5623 US, +1 386 347 5053 US

1 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88436690045


Webinar ID: 884 3669 0045 
International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbvcSqI3SB 

After calling any of these phone numbers, if you are asked for a participant ID or code, press #. 
Instructions on how to join a meeting by phone are available at: 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/enus/articles/201362663, which is a webpage entitled “Joining a 
Meeting by Phone.” 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

The Oversight Commission welcomes you to its meetings and your interest is appreciated. 

• If you wish to speak before the Oversight Commission, please fill out a speaker
card and hand it to the Oversight Commission Staff.

• If you wish to speak on a matter not on the agenda, please sign up for Open
Forum and wait for your name to be called.

• If you wish to speak on a matter on the agenda, please approach the
Commission when called, give your name, and your comments.

• Please be brief and limit your comments to the specific subject under discussion.
Only matters within the Oversight Commission’s jurisdictions may be addressed.
Time limitations shall be at the discretion of the Chair.

• Comment in advance. To send your comment directly to the Commissioner’s and
staff BEFORE the meeting starts, please send your comment, along with your full
name and agenda item number you are commenting on, to Felicia Verdin at
fverdin@oaklandca.gov.

Please note that eComment submissions close one (1) hour before posted meeting 
time. All submitted public comment will be provided to the Commissioners prior to the 
meeting. 

If you have any questions about these protocols,  
please e-mail Felicia Verdin at fverdin@oaklandca.gov. 

Do you need an ASL, Cantonese, Mandarin or Spanish interpreter or other assistance to participate? Please email 
fverdin@oaklandca.gov or call (510) 238-3128 or (510) 238-2007 for TDD/TTY five days in advance. 

¿Necesita un intérprete en español, cantonés o mandarín, u otra ayuda para participar? Por favor 
envíe un correo electrónico a fverdin@oaklandca.gov o llame al (510) 238-3128 o al 
(510) 238-2007 para TDD/TTY por lo menos cinco días antes de la reunión. Gracias.

你需要手語,西班牙語,粵語或國語翻譯服務嗎?請在會議前五個工作天電郵

2 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbvcSqI3SB
https://support.zoom.us/hc/enus/articles/201362663
mailto:fverdin@oaklandca.gov
mailto:fverdin@oaklandca.gov


fverdin@oaklandca.gov 或 致電 (510) 238-3128 或 (510) 238-2007 TDD/TTY.

Each person wishing to speak on items must complete a Speaker Card 
Persons addressing the Safety and Services Oversight Commission shall state their names and the 

organization they are representing, if any. 

A = Action Item  /   I = Informational Item  /  AD = Administrative Item  /  

ITEM TIME TYPE Attachments 

1. Call to Order   6:30 PM AD 

2. Roll Call 1 Minute AD 

3. Approve Meeting Minutes   1 Minute A Attachment 4 
4. Open Forum – For items not listed on the Agenda 5 Minutes I 

5. Ceasefire Update by Chief Holly Joshi, Department of
Violence Prevention (DVP); Reverend Damita Davis-
Howard (Oakland Police Department); Rev. Dr.
George C.L. Cummings, Faith in Action East Bay

45 Minutes I Attachments 
5, 5a 

6. DVP Dashboard update (Tchoukleva) 5 Minutes I 

7. CARE: Former & Current SSOC Commissioner
Survey (Farmer)

10 Minutes I Attachment 7 

8. CARE: League of Women Voters (LWVO) follow up,
June 5th 35x presentation, etc. (Farmer, Tchoukleva)

10 Minutes I Attachments 
8a, 8b, 8c, 8d 

9. MACRO ad hoc discussion (Farmer) 10 Minutes I Attachments 
9a, 9b 

10. Emergency Response Act of 2024 SSOC
Endorsement and Press Release 
(Farmer, Tchoukleva, Mehta) 

10 Minutes I Attachments 
10a,10b 

11. SSOC dashboard – Initiatives, Agenda Plan (Farmer) 15 Minutes I Attachments 
11a, 11b 

12. Joint Meeting Presentation Prep (Farmer) 30 Minutes A Attachments 
12a, 12b, 

12c, 12d, 12e 
13. Report from Staff – Schedule Planning, Remote

Participation, etc
5 Minutes AD 

14. New Business 5 Minutes A 

15. Adjournment 1 Minute A 

3 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1Nv25BYsZO3Wf3C1UjD4LFgqbhfY7nFcDUX-22yIV5Mc/edit
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1Nv25BYsZO3Wf3C1UjD4LFgqbhfY7nFcDUX-22yIV5Mc/edit
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1JW2uAykm4_RaC8GFvtsCX1hajIDlOpfB/view
https://cao-94612.s3.us-west-2.amazonaws.com/documents/SSOC-Press-Release-Endorsement.pdf


SAFETY AND SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMISSION (SSOC) 
SSOC created by the Public Safety and Services Violence Prevention Act of 2014 (Measure Z) 

Regular Meeting Minutes - DRAFT 
Monday, April 22, 2024 at 6:30pm 

1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Oakland, CA 94612 
City Council Chamber, 3rd Floor 

Oversight Commission Members: 

Kelly Cure (D-1), Chair: Omar Farmer (D-2), Paula Hawthorn (D-3), 
Vice Chair: Yoana Tchoukleva (D-4), VACANT (D-5), Samuel Dawit (pending) 

(D6), Gloria Bailey-Ray, (D-7), Michael Wallace (Mayoral), Sonya Mehta (At-Large) 

ITEM 
1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call

In attendance: Chair Farmer, Commissioner Dawit, Commissioner Mehta,
Bailey-Ray, Commissioner Hawthorn, Commissioner Wallace, Commissioner
Tchoukleva, Commissioner Cure.

3. Approve Meeting Minutes
Motion to approve the minutes by Commissioner Hawthorn, second by
Commissioner Mehta.
The minutes were approved unanimously.

4. Open Forum
No public comment.

5. SSOC Dashboard – MACRO ad hoc discussion

Chair Farmer referenced the MACRO spreadsheet in the agenda packet.  He
indicated that the spreadsheet highlights concerns regarding the MACRO
programs transparency on how it operates.  Chair Farmer shared that the
SSOC is looking for a councilmember to sponsor an ordinance to establish a
City of Oakland MACRO board or commission to oversee the program.
Boards and commissions are governed by the Brown Act.  This will also
provide a forum for a public oversight body to weigh in on issues regarding
the program.  The current advisory board does not provide opportunities for
the community to provide consistent feedback.

There was a drafted resolution in the agenda packet.

MACRO did publish a phone number, 510-444-MACRO.

Attachment 4

4 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Commissioner Mehta mentioned that it would be helpful to have materials 
and a communication strategy to promote the new phone number. 

Public Comment: Jim Donatell spoke in support of the MACRO program and 
the necessity for results reporting. 

6. SSOC Commissioners will review and take possible action on MACRO
ad hoc recommendations (Farmer)

Chair Farmer provided an overview of a rough draft of the proposed
ordinance.

Commissioners weighed in on the MACRO ad hoc recommendations.  They
highlighted the need for a clear understanding of the coordination between
OPD and the Fire Department.  They emphasized the value of the MACRO
program.  The general public is aware of MACRO, but unclear on how to
access it.  There is a lack of marketing, information and education.

Vice Chair Tchoukleva moved to adopt the draft resolution language with a
recommendation from the SSOC to City Council to implement an ordinance
based on the vision that is laid out in the draft resolution. Commissioner
Bailey-Ray seconded the motion.

Commissioner Bailey-Ray – yes, Vice Chair Tchoukleva – yes,
Commissioner Mehta – yes, Chair Farmer – yes, Commissioner Hawthorn- 
yes, Commissioner Wallace – yes, Commissioner Cure – yes.

Commissioner Dawit abstained.

The motion passed.

Public Comment:  Mary Vail spoke and previously provided written comments
to Chair Farmer.

7. Former SSOC Commissioner Feedback:  Link to Survey:
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1Nv25BYsZO3Wf3C1UjD4LFgqbhfY7nFcDUX-
22yIV5Mc/edit (Farmer)

Chair Farmer provided an update on the survey responses.  The survey was  
developed to obtain feedback from former SSOC commissioners. The purpose of 

5 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1Nv25BYsZO3Wf3C1UjD4LFgqbhfY7nFcDUX-22yIV5Mc/edit
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1Nv25BYsZO3Wf3C1UjD4LFgqbhfY7nFcDUX-22yIV5Mc/edit


the survey is to get feedback on their experience as former commissioners, in 
addition to their views on the proposed measure. 

The Commission took a 5 minute recess. 

Letitia Henderson joined the meeting and provided an update on her experience as 
the previous chair of the SSOC. She responded to questions from commissioners. 

Public Comment: Jim Donatell 
8. Discuss the Oakland Community Violence Reduction and Emergency

Response Act of 2024 as a potential SSOC Recommendation
(Tchoukleva)

Vice Chair Tchoukleva indicated that the new proposed commission has a different 
level of authority.  They will have planning authority and are required to develop a 4 
year violence prevention plan that complies with the 60/40 allocation of the funding, 
including funds set aside for the fire department. If approved by voters, the 
proposed new commission could provide more accountability and oversight. 

Motion by Chair Hawthorn to support the new Measure Z and authorized 
Tchoukleva, Mehta and Farmer to write and release a press release from the SSOC 
in support of the measure. Second by Tchouleva. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

Public commenters: Donald Dalke, Jose Dorado 

The commission took a two minute recess. 

9. Ceasefire Progress Report Recommendation (Tchoukleva)

The meeting was reconvened.

Vice Chair Tchoukleva provided an overview on this item and indicated that
an executive summary regarding the Ceasefire Program was included in the
agenda packet.

Commissioner Wallace recommended that a representative from Faith in
Action East Bay attend the meeting since they are involved with the night
walks and other activities that are part of the Ceasefire strategy.  He

6 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



indicated that Reverend Damita can provide an overview of the relationship 
between Ceasefire, the County, City and other groups.  DVP can provide an 
overview on the violence interrupters and life coaches. Its important to hear 
about other activities that are critical to the overall strategy.  Including the 
number of people that are being reached, how frequent are the night walks 
and what is the impact.   

Commissioner Hawthorn referenced the importance and value of the audit 
recommendations and obtaining updates on those items. 

Pastor Wallace emphasize the need to get feedback on the 
recommendations for accountability, transparency and success reporting on 
each recommendation. 

Commissioner Bailey-Ray suggested presentations in June, August and 
October. 

Vice Chair Tchouleva moved to have three meetings between now and the 
end of the term of the SSOC where DVP, OPD, Rev. Damita and 
representations from Faith in Action are invited to provide progress updates 
on how they are each working to revive Operation Ceasefire. Second by 
Commissioner Wallace. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

No public comment. 
10. DVP Dashboard update (Tchoukleva)

Vice Chair Tchoukleva provided an update on this item. Members of the
SSOC met with Councilmember Reid’s office and the Department of Violence
Prevention staff to discuss a dashboard that is being compiled by DVP staff.
To date, much of the data are performance metrics, however outcomes data
will be provided through the Urban Institute and Urban Strategies
evaluations.  There will be opportunities for the community and SSOC to
provide feedback.

No public comment on this item.

7 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



11. Remote Participation (Tchoukleva)

The bylaws language is corrected.  There was one small change, on page 48 to 
clarify that each commissioner can request to use AB2449 two times per year. This 
is under subsection 1.  

Chair Farmer clarified that Commissioners attending remotely do not contribute to 
the quorum. 

Staff provided an update and indicated that more information will be available in 
May. 

No public comment on this item. 
12. SSOC Dashboard – (1) Initiatives, (2) CARE, (3) Strategic Plan Objective

2.4, Evaluation Summary (Tchoukleva/Farmer/Bailey-Ray/Cure)

Chair Farmer provided an update on this item.  He thanked Commissioner Cure for 
her work on strategic plan objective 2.4 which is a summary of the various 
evaluations.  This information will be included possibly as a score card in the end of 
year report. 

The Chair indicated that there is one upcoming community presentation. 

The information provided on the dashboard included in the agenda packet is to keep 
everyone update on the initiatives that the Commission is working on to date. 

No public comment on this item. 

13. Report from Staff – Schedule Planning
Staff reminded the Commission that the next meeting of the SSOC is May
20, 2024.

14. New Business: SSOC Membership, etc
Chair Farmer and other commissioners welcomed the newest Commissioner
Samuel Dawit from District 6.

The meeting was adjourned. 

8 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Ceasefire Re-implementation 
Progress Report Request

Date: 4/17/24

Ongoing Analysis Areas for Improvement Status Direct Communication Areas for Improvement Status

Data & Intel Sharing Call-ins Covid-prevented call ins
Shooting Reviews Interventions
Crime Analysis Custom Notifications
Law Enforcement Partner Analysis Community Partners

Faith Leaders
US Attorney's Office
DA's Office
Service Providers
Victims of Violence

Services & Support Areas for Improvement Status Law Enforcement Areas for Improvement Status

Interested Direct Communication 
Participants

First and Worst Offender 
Follow Through

DVP Service Providers OPD Ceasefire Unit
Life oaches Other Units or Agencies

Attachment 5

9 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Ceasefire Audit Recommendations: 

Reinstate Coordination Meeting: Coordination Meetings have resumed, being led by the 
Mayor’s Chief of Education & Community Safety.  The meetings are held once a week and 
they are led and overseen by Brooklyn Williams of the Mayor's Office.  Partners who attend 
regularly include but is not limited to:  OPD Assistant Chief Jones, Deputy Chief Shavies and 
Captain Valle; The Ceasefire Director, Davis-Howard, DVP Chief Joshi, Deputy Chief Medina, 
Life Coach supervisor, Haywood and Direct Communications Life Coach, Mena; Alameda 
County Deputy Probation officers, Cole and Winn and Probation Division Director, Jointer. 

The weekly Coordination meetings has given us an opportunity to reconcile data faster, 
thereby improving drastically the quality of the data shared between OPD and DVP.  (DONE) 

Reinstate quarterly Ceasefire Performance Reviews in Q1 of 2024:  The first performance 
review meeting was held March 14, 2024, and the next was held on May 7, 2024.  These 
meetings occur every other month and have been scheduled for the rest of calendar year 
2024.  (DONE) 

Shooting Review as a Priority:  Deputy Chief Shavies is now leading the Shooting Reviews, 
with the Assistant Chief and other Deputy Chiefs in attendance.  Staff from SFPD and ACSO 
were invited to the Shooting Reviews as partners, and they attend regularly.   (DONE) 

Consolidate Ceasefire Unit, and Crime Gun Intelligence Center under one chain of 
command.  CGIC and Ceasefire are physically located together, and the Ceasefire Captain is 
now captain over CGIC. (DONE) 

Reintegrate Crime Reduction Teams into geographic areas, prioritizing staffing for those 
most impacted by gun violence.  There are now two (2) CRT teams designated by geography 
– CRT West and CRT East. (DONE)

Assistant Chief of Police Duties:  Appoint the Assistant Chief of Police to manage the 
Ceasefire Unit with a specific focus on reducing gun violence.  (DONE) 
The Assistant Chief of Police should oversee both the Ceasefire and CRT gun violence 
plans. (DONE) 

Direct Communications:  Trained additional OPD officers and service staff to deliver custom 
notifications.  This has increased our outreach thus increasing the number of direct 
communications.   (DONE) 

Latino Gang Group SME: OPD should have a new unit within Ceasefire to address Latin 
Group and Gang violence.  There are three officers with intimate knowledge of predominantly 
and traditionally Latin groups, gangs, and networks.  Staffing and knowledge base does not 
allow for us to stand up a unit currently.    (DONE) 

Fully staff Ceasefire Unit for simultaneous focus on multiple active conflicts. There has been 
an increase in staffing of the Ceasefire Unit, however staffing is very fluid, near future 
promotions, transfers and retirements will impact the staffing levels but we continue to recruit 
to fill all vacancies. (ONGOING) 

Attachment 5a

10 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



SSOC question: 
Can OPD speak to how they handle shootings on freeways? Does CHP report to all 
shootings? How does OPD work with CHP? Are they aware of any reasons why freeway 
shootings have decreased in many counties across the state except for Alameda County? 

OPD Response: 
OPD only responds to shootings that are on the off or on ramps.  OPD seldom gets shooting 
information from CHP unless it’s a known individual. 

OPD doesn’t have the data regarding freeway shootings. 

11 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Attachment 7

12 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



13 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



An Assessment of Oakland
Oversight Bodies: Progress, Gaps,
and Recommendations for
Improved Functions

Pajouablai Monica Lee | MPA Capstone, Spring 2021

Attachment 8a

14 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

This report was commissioned by the Action

Committee of the League of Women Voters of

Oakland, and made

possible in part, by the generous support of many people from the City of Oakland. In

particular, this report benefitted from the guidance and support of the LWVO leaders Gail

Wallace and Mary Bergan, and several Oakland oversight members, former and current

City Council Members, engaged Oakland constituents, and Oakland City and Oakland

Unified School District sta�.

ABOUT THE AUTHOR

Pajouablai Monica Lee
Goldman School of Public Policy

University of California, Berkeley

Master of Public A�airs, 2021

The author conducted this study as part of the program of professional education at the

Goldman School of Public Policy, University of California at Berkeley. This paper is

submitted in partial fulfillment of the course requirements for the Master of Public A�airs

degree. The judgements and conclusions are solely those of the author, and are not

necessarily endorsed by the Goldman School of Public Policy, by the University of California

or by any other agency.

1
15 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. Acknowledgements________________________________________pg1

II. Executive Summary______________________________________pg3-6
A. Key Findings
B. Key Recommendations

III. Introduction____________________________________________pg7

IV. Background on the League__________________________________pg7

V. Background on Oakland____________________________________pg8

VI. Background on Oversight Bodies______________________________pg8

VII. Scope of Oversight______________________________________pg9-10
A. Research Question(s)
B. Report Methodology
C. Universe of Oversight Bodies
D. Report Limitations

VIII. Findings_______________________________________________pg11
A. Strength of Oversight Bodies___________________________pg11-14
B. Good Governance___________________________________pg14
C. Lack of Capacity in Oversight Members______________________pg15
D. Lack of Sta� Capacity to Support Oversight Bodies______________pg15

IX. Recommendations
A. Improving Good Governance_____________________________pg16
B. Improving Oversight Body Member Capacity__________________pg17
C. Improving Oversight Body Sta� Capacity_____________________pg17

X. Conclusions and Reflections_________________________________pg19

XI. Appendix
A. Appendix A - Guide for Authoring New Strong Ballot Measures_______pg20
B. Appendix B - DPIs/Rubric to Assess Oversight Bodies_____________pg21
C. Appendix C - Examples of Oversight Bodies’ Action/Strategic Plans____pg22
D. Appendix D - Specific Recommendations to Oversight Bodies_______pg23-28

2
16 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Executive Summary
While America looks starkly di�erent today than it did when the Founding Fathers fought for
independence from Great Britain, one constant remains: voters still organize around the
rallying cry “No taxation without representation!” In Oakland, California one of the key
institutions meant to balance the City’s desire to extract revenues via new tax measures is
oversight bodies; their purpose is to ensure that newly created revenue streams are used for
what voters intend them to. Further, since the proposal of oversight bodies is often used to
help pass new measure ballots which tend to be regressive, it is even more important that
they function well. This assessment found that while Oakland’s oversight bodies are an
important institution that provide value to voters and local o�cials, they require more
resources and support from outside stakeholders to do their job e�ectively.

The assessment examines nine of Oakland’s 30+ oversight bodies through more than 20
interviews, document review where available, and attendance of meetings where available.
The data gathered from January to April 2021 suggests that while there has been some
improvement in the functioning and e�ectiveness of Commissions since the League of
Women Voters’ (the League) evaluation of Oakland's oversight bodies from over ten years
ago, there is much work that remains to be done. This assessment is especially important as
Oakland has recently been very active in adopting these 9 new taxation measures in the last
6 years, which this study examines.

The main gaps uncovered in this assessment can be grouped into three categories of
needed improvement: increasing good governance practices among oversight bodies as
entities; increasing the capacity of members of oversight bodies; and increasing capacity of
sta� supporting oversight bodies. Since many oversight bodies have recently been adopted
via ballot measures, this study includes recommended guides to consider that the League
could suggest to groups proposing funding measures which they can refine and use to
strengthen new oversight bodies. It also includes key questions that the League can provide
proponents to guide them in thinking about how measure language should be drafted and
structured. However, since measure text is also often reinforced by outside entities, key
stakeholders like the League play a major role in holding accountable both oversight bodies
and the City to protect the interests of the public. The City also has a role to play as a
steward of public finances, which is why this study also includes recommendations that the
League could consider pushing the mayor and city council to adopt.

Key Findings
While oversight bodies in Oakland are operating much more e�ciently than they were a
decade ago, not all bodies have improved equally over time. This is due to a combination of
di�erences in how oversight bodies are formed, a di�erence in the skills and expertise of
commission and board members, and a di�erence in sta� resources and experience. For
example, the most e�ective bodies have annual retreats and take time to evaluate their

3
17 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



performance based on pre-set strategic plans, and have sta� that can dedicate all their
time to supporting a commission. Conversely, least e�ective bodies were not formed in a
timely manner, and some do not seem to meet regularly. At best, these bodies may just
have not made their meeting times easily accessible by the public, which is not a direct
violation of Oakland ordinances but certainly not maintaining the spirit of transparency of
locally passed policies. This finding is not surprising, however, since most sta� supporting
oversight bodies have other primary duties, so they have little to no time or drive to support
the boards or commissions that are assigned to them. Further, it could also be the case that
board members are not aware of their duties, and authority as training and recruitment of
oversight body members is inconsistent. The recommendations below seek to bridge some
of these gaps to ensure that all oversight bodies are able to meet the expectations of voters
who have adopted revenue measures.

Recommendations in Three Key Areas
While each Commission or Board has a di�erent purpose and mission, there are key steps
that both the City of Oakland and League can take to ensure that all oversight bodies are
properly equipped to maintain good governance practices. Further oversight bodies are only
as e�ective as their members and supporting sta�, so the recommendations below address
issues uncovered during the assessment that both the City and outside stakeholders can
help address. A summary chart can be found here, and recommendations will be discussed
below.

Since the original text of previously adopted measure language can be ambiguous,
community stakeholders like the League of Women Voters have an important accountability
role to ensure that funds are used as intended, and oversight boards exercise the power
they were given. There are actions that the League can take independently of the City of
Oakland, and also various policies that it can advocate for the City and/or City Council to
adopt.

1. Improving Good Governance
Regardless of how an oversight body comes to be formed, there are general good
governance practices that must be observed for an oversight body to function as it is meant
to be. As the main stewards of city tax dollars, the City should provide oversight bodies with
resources that lay out clearly standard expectations of what good governance looks like:
conducting regular meetings that are easily accessible to the public, and widely publicized;
conducting long-term planning; and conducting broad outreach for diverse member
recruitment.

The City is also well-positioned to standardize how information about and from oversight
bodies is presented to the public. This assessment recommends the City create a central
clearinghouse that provides in a standardized format: information about each oversight

4
18 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1pBsrFRRi3AUfsHu1UFKNbjlfeHII3Fmu6fUsEenVysM/edit?usp=sharing
gailkong
Highlight



body including adoption/formation background (including original measure text), when the
body meets and how to attend meetings; updated documents for each body, including how
often documents are required to be updated; and information on how to contact and
engage with the oversight body and sta�.

In addition to advocating for the City and/or City Council to enact these standard operating
procedures, the League has an important accountability role to play. If the League launches
a campaign to advocate for a main clearinghouse site, that could be used as a launch pad
for educating the public about required timelines for when the public can expect oversight
bodies to update documents, as well as how often the public should expect the bodies to
meet. This would also be a good opportunity to highlight to the public how often each fund
should have an audit.

2. Improving Oversight Body Member Capacity
Improving the capacity of members of oversight bodies can significantly increase oversight
power. Currently, the City conducts training sessions for new members of oversight boards,
but they are inconsistent and sometimes not accessible to members who fill vacancies in the
middle of terms. This is why one key recommendation where the City can improve, is
o�ering quarterly training sessions for new individuals, or members who need refreshers.
Further, if the City follows recommendations in part 1 to further good governance policies, it
can leverage those guides and resources during training sessions.

While the League may not have the resources to o�er regular training sessions like the City,
it can be one of many community stakeholders to demand these from the City. But a major
contribution from the League could come from maintaining a diverse resume bank of
qualified residents who it would endorse and recommend to the City for new and/or vacant
positions on oversight bodies. Since the League already has ties to community groups, it
could leverage these relationships, and build new ones to ensure that there continues to be a
diverse pipeline of talent ready to serve. To cultivate talent, the League could also partner
with professional development organizations with missions to develop young talent like New
Leaders Council.

3. Improving Oversight Body Sta� Capacity
The most successful oversight bodies are ones which have been allowed to extract enough
administrative funds from a measure to have dedicated sta� support their work. The City of
Oakland currently sta�s oversight bodies in an uneven way as administrative funds vary
between measures; this is unsustainable and must change. As a progressive-minded
community that is committed to compensating workers for their work, this assessment
strongly recommends that the City dedicates a core team of sta� to supporting oversight
bodies as their main job. This change would ensure that sta� are able to develop
subject-matter expertise as well as institutional knowledge. Further, allocating sta� to solely

5
19 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

gailkong
Highlight



support oversight bodies would allow them to develop relationships with members of
oversight bodies and support their development.

The League can play a major role in advocating for the City and the City Council to establish
this new o�ce of sta�ers dedicated solely to supporting the 30 plus oversight bodies that
are supposed to represent the interest of the Oakland residents. As part of its duties to
inform voters and support measure proponents, the League could also better educate
voters and proponents on the need for, and value of increased allocations to administration.

Looking to the Future
While most of the preceding recommendations are overarching policy changes that the City
and League can enact, it is also important for measure proponents to be intentional about
measure language. Since language adopted from ballot measures is technically legally
binding, a key recommendation for the League is to ensure future measure text include at
least 3 things: how often a commission or oversight body should meet per year, at minimum;
how often an oversight body should update documents made publicly available to voters;
and the number of audits that the City should conduct. Proponents should also consider
whether they want to codify how often an oversight body should interact with the public
and/or voters. A guide on drafting ballot measures that the League can provide to
community entities interested in pushing for ballot measures can be found in Appendix A.

This assessment also recommends key questions that community stakeholders like the
League and proponents should consider when drafting measure language. You can find the
list linked in Appendix A..

6
20 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

gailkong
Highlight



Introduction
Oakland taxpayers collectively generate hundreds of millions of dollars in tax revenue to the
City every year. Recent election cycles have presented voters with at least one new tax
measure on the ballot each year. Since the City’s tax revenue streams are limited, and these
ballot measures seem likely to continue to increase, the League of Women Voters is
well-poised to play an important accountability role. Typically, tax measures propose
oversight bodies to govern the revenues raised as a way to ensure accountability for voters,
and therein make it more likely for new measures to be adopted by voters. This assessment
commissioned by the League evaluates to what extent oversight bodies actually serve this
purpose, and whether there are steps to remedy gaps uncovered.

Background on The League of Women Voters
The League of Women Voters prides itself in local advocacy and voter education. Founded
in 1920, it is one of the oldest grassroots, non-profit, non-partisan political organizations in
the country, the League has built up a reputation of providing accurate, impartial analyses
of issues, ideas, and for advocating for and against proposals after careful, impartial, and
extensive research for the Bay Area community. Each election cycle, state and local Leagues
analyze ballot measures and present Pros and Cons arguments to educate and guide
voters. In their other advocacy e�orts, the League also makes recommendations to voters
on local and state ballot measures in their Vote with the League materials.

In Oakland, the League of Women Voters of Oakland (LWVO) Action Committee
(Committee) specifically analyzes ballot measures as well as legislative proposals before the
Oakland City Council, Oakland Unified School District (OUSD) Board of Education, and
Oakland voters. The Committee recommends positions and actions to the LWVO Board of
Directors and prepares supporting arguments for those positions. The LWVO also joins
e�orts with other local organizations and Councilmembers in developing ballot measures
and legislative proposals. The League’s work In these areas initially prompted this research
study.

Over 10 years ago in 2009, the Oakland City Council commissioned the LWVO to “evaluate
the functions, operations, and value of Oakland’s boards and commissions in order to
provide guidance for a rational allocation of resources to their e�orts.” The focus of that
study was centered on advisory groups created by the City and the Workforce Investment
Board (WIB).1 In that 2009 study, the League created and distributed a survey, and
conducted in-depth interviews. While the findings of that evaluation are unfortunately not
too di�erent from the findings that are uncovered in this study, it is clear that there has been
some progress in how oversight bodies operate. This assessment delves into these
developments and also covers areas where improvement is still needed.

1 The WIB is now known as the Workforce Development Board (WDB)

7
21 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

gailkong
Highlight



Background on Oakland
Birthplace of numerous civil rights movements, Oakland is a cultural mecca that boasts a
diverse population of more than 433,000 residents according to the latest Census estimates
from 2019. Though vibrant and diverse, Oakland also has some of the largest equity gaps
among major American cities. A 2018 study initiated by the City of equity indicators found
that Black households on average made about one-third as much each year as white
households. Inequality persists in other indicators as well, including in education and housing.
While the impact of regressive tax policies like ballot measures for public goods like libraries
may seem minor on an individual level, they exacerbate the income gap on the aggregate.
As a democratic institution in Oakland, the League is a steward of the public trust, and thus
has an obligation to ensure that when regressive measures are adopted, the oversight
bodies function e�ectively to o�set, in part, some of the harms, or costs incurred (both
tangible and intangible) from adopted measures.

Background on Oversight Bodies
While Oakland has 30+ boards and commissions formed via di�erent ways over time for
di�erent purposes, this assessment focuses only on 9 boards and commissions that were
formed after Oakland residents adopted ballot measures at the polls. Since all 9 bodies
perform oversight duties over their respective funds, this report refers to them as “oversight
bodies.” This report assessment the following tax measures that were adopted from
2014-2020 and respective oversight bodies:

1. Measure D/Library Advisory Commission (LAC)

2. Measure HH/Sugar-Sweetened Beverages Community Advisory Board

(SSBCAB)

3. Measure KK/I-Bond Committee

4. Measure Q/PRAC

5. Measure Q and W/Commission on Homelessness

6. Measure V/Cannabis Regulatory Commission (CRC)

7. Measure Z/SSOC

8. OUSD Measure G1 Oversight Commission

9. OUSD Measure N Oversight Commission

Most Oakland oversight bodies do not have legal authority to decide how or where certain
tax funds can be spent - only the City Council and Mayor have that authority. Oversight
bodies do, however, have authority to carry out independent research, listen to and hear
from constituents on their recommendations/priorities, provide feedback and
recommendations to City departments/agencies. Oversight bodies are expected to report to

8
22 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



the City Council at least once a year on how tax funds were actually spent, compared to expectations per provisions in
approved ballot measure.

Figure 1:  Logic Model of Oversight Bodies

9
23 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Scope of Assessment

A. Research Question(s)

In this assessment, the League set out to answer the following question: what value
and impact do oversight bodies have on Oakland constituents and decision makers
beyond their standard audits and reviews? Another way to frame this is: “do
oversight bodies provide useful information or insights that help voters and local
officials determine if measures are producing the results envisioned when they were
approved?”

Other sub-questions that were considered in the interview process include:

● What sets oversight bodies apart from the Auditor’s Office?
● What are the current gaps and challenges among Oakland oversight bodies?

What’s working well?

● What are some recommendations or changes you would like to see in order to

improve oversight functions?

B. Report Methodology

This research project used a mixed-methods approach that included in-depth
semi-structured interviews with oversight members, relevant stakeholders who have a role in
oversight bodies, observations of commission meetings, and review of City and Commission
documents and reports. These documents included but are not limited to: budgets, meeting
minutes, presentations from City Departments, news articles relevant to Oakland or Ballot
Measure issues, studies on relevant issues, and best practices that other local government
bodies use in their operations.

C. Universe of Oversight Bodies

As already noted, this study looks at Oakland ballot tax measures adopted by Oakland
voters between 2014 and 2020. These measures imposed taxes on Oakland voters or
businesses either through a sales, parcel, excise, or other type of tax. With this criteria in
mind, seven out of 35 Oakland City oversight bodies and tax measures were assessed and
two Oakland Unified School District (OUSD) oversight bodies and tax measures were
assessed.

In e�orts to keep interviews and opinions confidential, specific names and pronouns will be
omitted and only general identifiers will be used throughout the report.

One thing to note is that Oakland’s Measure V that was passed in the November 2018
election cycle was a City ordinance that would allow the City Council to amend cannabis
businesses tax rates without voter approval so long as it does not increase the tax rate. The

10
24 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Measure did not actually impose a new tax on any Oakland businesses or residents so
because of this, there was less emphasis on evaluating the Cannabis Regulatory
Commission.

Figure 2:  Chart of Universe of Oversight Bodies

D. Report Limitations

The research relied heavily on qualitative data resulting from in-depth, semi-structured
interviews. Due to the limited data sources for interviews caused by the pandemic, oversight
members’ and sta� capacity, the interviews that were conducted were based on availability
and timing. However, there was an attempt and e�ort made to interview at least one
oversight member of each oversight body and/or at least one Oakland sta� member that
supports the oversight body. See who was interviewed in the Report Methodology Section.

There is not a lot of literature on tools and sources for specifically local oversight bodies.
There are, however, a number of news media pieces, best practices, and guides that other
local governing boards and leagues have used in their local governance which I try to use as
supplemental text and reasoning for the recommendations in this report. Where relevant
and appropriate, some ideas are borrowed from other local leagues and boards that are
successful in carrying out their oversight duties.

11
25 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Findings

While oversight bodies in Oakland are operating relatively more e�ciently than they were a
decade ago, not all bodies have improved equally over time. This is due to a combination of
di�erences in how oversight bodies are formed, a di�erence in the skills and expertise of
commission and board members, and major di�erences in sta� resources and experience.
This assessment focuses on these 3 areas because they are essential to an e�ective and
functioning oversight body: empowered and qualified board and commission members;
empowered and resourced sta�; and strong governance practices. SInce oversight bodies
do not have any legal authority, their power comes from being trusted sources of
information that the public can rely on; this also allows them to leverage transparency with
voters. This trust that the public has in oversight bodies can only be maintained if oversight
bodies observe good governance practices, in addition to having capable members, who
are supported by knowledgeable and dedicated sta�.

The 9 oversight bodies are categorized below by their strength and organization based on
their performance according to key performance indicators (KPI), interviews and the review
of a variety of relevant documents. The full KPI chart can be seen on Appendix B or linked
here. Based on this rubric, I was able to categorize the 9 bodies into 3 levels of oversight
power: strong, medium, and low strength.

Strong Oversight Bodies: LAC, SSBCAB, OUSD N & G1, Cannabis Regulatory Commission*
The LAC, SSBCAB, Measure N & G1 Commissions (both in the OUSD) all appear to be the
strongest and/or most efficient and organized oversight bodies. The main strengths that
these oversight bodies possess are:

● Dedicated, informed, and knowledgeable supporting sta� member who advocates
for and value the oversight body

● All have annual retreats to set a strategic/action plan and metrics for themselves,
and have consistent reporting track records

● The Commissioners appear passionate about the subject matter/issue relating to
the ballot measure and the Chair(s) relatively have strong leadership skills to
lead/guide the oversight body in vision/strategic planning

● They actively engage with the public and/or have set community events or visits to
engage with their respective communities and City Council members. For example,
the LAC holds an annual mixer where community members and the City Council are
invited. They also have a variety of Library Branch partners who help guide their
work. The SSBCAB similarly has strong ties and relationships with community
groups and organizations who have received grants from the SSB tax revenue.
Many of these community groups were very engaged during the SSB meeting that I
observed. Moreover, the stakeholders along with the oversight body were very

12
26 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1H719xMV6GLDx2lTAptDRUMQ8yDUfDL1xj3UHzpgYZ9o/edit#gid%3D0


vocal when the City Council and Mayor had to determine how the first round of
funding would be allocated in 2017.

● These oversight bodies also have dedicated sta� who are very engaged,
supportive, and responsive to the commissioners, and do not have competing
duties with other oversight bodies, or are hired to specifically support the
implementation of the ballot measure.

The Library Advisory Commission is one example of what a model oversight body could look
like. The LAC is well organized given its long history prior to 2014 and its dedicated sta�
member who works solely on cannabis regulation in the City. The sta� member was very
positive and proactive about the LAC in their recent years of work. What’s most important to
note is that the sta� member highlighted how the LAC has transformed over the last 10
years with the new Chairs and intentional e�orts to recruit a more diverse oversight body.

Medium Strength Oversight Bodies: IBOND, SSOC
The two commissions IBOND and SSOC both appear to be organized in some manner but
it’s difficult to determine their progress and impact due to what was expressed in the
corresponding interviews and lack of public information on the Oakland website.

● IBOND: It’s important to acknowledge and appreciate that the IBOND has written
and presented a couple of annual reports that evaluate the City’s activities in
achieving Measure KK goals, and both reports highlighted successes and areas of
concerns. It’s clear the IBOND has intentional, evaluative metrics and benchmarks
that were set in coordination with the City. According to the commissioner that I
interviewed, the IBOND was intentional about syncing up with the City departments
to ensure they could evaluate them based on the same metrics and milestones.

○ The Commissioner stated: “All of us wanted us to extend our role a little bit in
just being able to dialogue with di�erent departments and look at their
spending plan and try to give insights on how it could be best measured
when those decisions were getting made to allocate resources so we can
have some strength of data and metrics to refer to…The metric was in place
so [we] could go through in and assess if they actually did it.”

○ The Commissioner also believed that the IBOND and relevant departments
were e�ective and valuable: “So as a committee looking back, it would be
clear to look at all di�erent angles and make determinations with the best
intent with the measure. The departments really went above and beyond to
make themselves available to the committee.”

○ The Commissioner also discussed how the information was now more
readily accessible online but I personally had a challenge with the website
because it is not up to date compared to the other oversight bodies.
Moreover, because the information was so hard to access, I was not able to

13
27 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



attend any of their public meetings and never received a reply from the
supporting sta� member even after a few email attempts.

● SSOC: The SSOC’s April public meeting included the presentation updates from the
Department of Violence Prevention on their FY19-20 activities. The presentation was
very informative and indicative of the department’s intentional e�orts to reduce
violence. However, the Commission cancelled seven meetings last year when the
pandemic started which made progress and activities difficult to conduct.
Moreover, “safety” is measured in a variety of ways dependent on the ballot
measure goals, and there are now a number of new safety concerns that the
pandemic has brought on. All of these factors make it difficult to determine if the
SSOC had any recent guiding metrics or outcomes beyond the standard
departmental metrics. Moreover, my interview was with a newer member who
expressed reservations on the commissions actual efficacy and direction but
acknowledged the City’s e�orts to solve such a complex problem: “When the voters
wanted an oversight commission, they wanted to make absolutely sure their tax
dollars would be spent on what they voted on it...And when the City comes in with
their budget, all we can do is “yeah I see why you’re spending money on this, it’s not
like we can propose what they can spend on these [dollars on].”

To Be Determined/Low Strength Oversight Bodies: PRAC, Commission on Homelessness
This leaves the PRAC and the Homelessness Commission which both appear to be the least
organized and left me unsure of its progress to date given its recent formation.

● PRAC: PRAC appears semi-organized but slightly disjointed. While there are several
past meeting minutes of course it might be too soon to tell how they will manage
Measure Q dollars since it was just passed last year but a sub-committee has been
formed for Measure Q which looks promising but the Member on that committee is
unsure/hesitant of PRAC’s efficacy. Another stakeholder also disclosed that the
PRAC supporting sta� member has cycled out thrice already in the recent months.
It makes me question: why the turnover in such a short amount of time?
Additionally, the PRAC Commissioner I interviewed seemed to question other PRAC
Commissioners' personal intentions and whether or not they were actively
passionate about carrying out PRAC’s mission. They also expressed concern over
how PRAC would measure success and if there was a strategic plan or vision. The
Commissioner made another concerning statement: “There’s an individual whose
primary job is to manage Measure Q on a day to day basis, [but] she has to date,
has not been to a PRAC meeting. She’s an official sta� member but hasn’t attended
ANY PRAC meetings. Not sure what the expectations were before I was sworn in but
the ad-hoc committee feels she should be attending all meetings. That is
concerning to me.”

● Homelessness Commission: Since Measure W was passed in 2018, one would
expect the Homelessness Commission to have formed by 2019. However, the

14
28 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



commission just formed in December of 2020. None of the commissioners were
available for interviews since they had just finished their training and orientation.
The LWVO will have to follow the Homelessness Commission closely especially with
the passage of the 2020 Measure Q. In this situation it probably would have been
helpful to have a clear timeline with deadlines laying out when a commission should
form, and when a first meeting should have been held.

Key findings in this assessment are grouped into the three sections below.

Good Governance
Currently, the City of Oakland does not provide oversight bodies with clear expectations of
good governance practices, in a uniform way. In certain cases, it is not clearly stipulated that
oversight bodies must conduct regular meetings that are also easily accessible to the public,
nor how often. Of concern is the oversight body for Measure W, the Homelessness
Commission, which did not form and did not meet for the first time until more than a year
after a ballot measure forming it was passed.

Standards and expectations on how oversight bodies should engage with the public do not
exist. For example, information for when commissions and boards hold meetings is not
widely publicized in a uniform way for Oakland oversight bodies. As mentioned in the
methodology, attendance of public meetings was one area of information this report drew
on. But since not all oversight bodies have clearly publicized how members of the public
could attend their meetings - whether in person or virtually - the information-gathering
aspect of this assessment revealed an unexpected gap in transparency and accessibility.
Even if the assessment had not been conducted during a pandemic, not providing access to
meetings

Further, the LAC provides an excellent example of what an e�ective oversight body could
do, hosting an annual event that has gained notoriety in the community where key
stakeholders and the public are invited. But since this kind of community engagement has
not been established as a requirement, or a widely accepted norm, not all oversight bodies
provide this opportunity to the public.

There also lacks standard good governance expectations to guide how governing bodies
should conduct business. For example, not every oversight body conducts long-term
planning. Perhaps even more important, there are no guidelines for how often oversight
bodies must update documents and files that it provides to the public. This inconsistency
creates unpredictability at best, and at worst, renders oversight bodies powerless.

Lack of Capacity in Members of Oversight Bodies

15
29 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

gailkong
Highlight

gailkong
Highlight



The inequitable distribution of resources between the oversight bodies has created an
imbalance in the strength and capacity of members of oversight bodies. When new
Commissions are formed, all members go through the same training and orientation
process at the same time so institutional knowledge is learned at what appears to be an
"equitable" pace. In addition to the standard general training including: Public Ethics Training,
Brown Act and Sunshine Ordinance Training, and Racial Equity Training, some commissions
also include additional training on relevant subjects. For example, the Commission on
Homelessness had additional training that included an overview on Encampment
Management Policy and the history of redlining. However, some oversight bodies only gave
members documents and handbooks with the expectation that members would familiarize
themselves with the materials alone.

While the initial training for members is a good starting point, it is unclear whether members
of oversight bodies get continuing training. The fact that new members who are selected to
fill vacancies often feel lost and ill-equipped suggests that continuing training is not an
option. Not only does this mean that new members may not be prepared to do their jobs,
returning members may never fully exercise their oversight powers.

Further, the breadth of broad outreach for diverse member recruitment varies by oversight
body, as well as which members are currently serving. Member recruitment both at the
beginning when a commission or board is formed, and to fill vacancies lacks standard
operating procedures. This lack of standard SOPs sometimes results in long vacancies and
loss of institutional knowledge. While this was not the case, it is possible that these long
absences could stymie the work of oversight bodies when there is an absence of a quorum.
While some measure language is perspective on qualifications for who should be elected to
join oversight bodies, there is a need for clear guidelines to clarify how to source diverse and
qualified residents.

Lack of Sta� Capacity to Support Oversight Bodies
Almost all of the Oakland or OUSD sta� members interviewed for this assessment
expressed how supporting oversight bodies is part of their job, but certainly not their main
day job. Unfortunately, their work supporting oversight bodies is what usually falls under
“other duties assigned.” So even though the work needed to support an oversight body
could merit a full-time position, the lack of dedicated resources means sta� support will
vary, depending on how much capacity and bandwidth a city employee can provide. One
sta� member said, “it becomes almost a half time and full time position,” except they’re not
paid extra for it. This could potentially explain concerns about a sta�er who did not show up
to any meetings of the oversight body they were supposed to support. This also means that
when new board members need to be oriented, there is not su�cient sta�ng.

Recommendations

16
30 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

gailkong
Highlight



These findings suggest that the most e�ective bodies have annual retreats and take time to
evaluate their performance based on pre-set strategic plans, and have sta� that can
dedicate all their time to supporting a commission. This assessment goes further into detail
below on steps that both the City of Oakland and the League of Women Voters can take
along with other stakeholders to ensure that oversight bodies are empowered to do what
they were meant to do.

Improving Good Governance
The City should provide oversight bodies with resources that lay out clearly standard
expectations of what good governance, or good engagement with the public looks like. To
ensure that all oversight bodies are actually engaging with the public and local communities
are they are intended to, the City should establish the following standard expectations for
oversight bodies in the following areas: a minimum for how often oversight bodies should
meet in a year; standards for conducting regular meetings that are easily accessible to the
public, and widely publicized; standards for conducting long-term planning; and developing
standards for ensuring broad outreach for diverse member recruitment.

The City is well-positioned to standardize how information about and from oversight bodies
is presented to the public. This assessment recommends the City create a central
clearinghouse that provides in a standardized format: information about each oversight
body including adoption/formation background (including original measure text), when the
body meets and how the public can attend meetings. It would also be advisable for the City
to ensure that all meetings are accessible.

A critical part of this clearinghouse is ensuring access to documents and files from oversight
bodies. While some measure language is specific on how often documents for an oversight
body should be updated, others are silent. For uniformity and increased transparency, there
should be SOPS on how often all documents from oversight bodies should be updated.

Since oversight bodies are supposed to be stewards of the public interest, their continual
engagement with the public is incredibly important. This is why information on how to
contact and engage with the oversight body and sta� needs to be uniform and easily
accessible to the public. Further, in addition to meetings, the City and outside stakeholders
should consider how to standardize and increase engagement between oversight bodies
and the public.

In addition to advocating for the City and/or City Council to create this central
clearinghouse and enact these standard operating procedures, the League has an
important accountability role to play. If the League launches a campaign to advocate for a
main clearinghouse site, that could be used as a launch pad for educating the public about
required timelines for when the public can expect oversight bodies to update documents, as

17
31 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

gailkong
Highlight



well as how often the public should expect the bodies to meet. This would also be a good
opportunity to highlight to the public how often each fund should have an audit.

Improving Oversight Body Member Capacity
Improving the capacity of members of oversight bodies can significantly increase oversight
power. Currently, the City conducts training sessions for new members of oversight boards,
but they are inconsistent and sometimes not accessible to members who fill vacancies in the
middle of terms. This is why one key recommendation where the City can improve, is
o�ering consistent quarterly training sessions for new individuals, or members who need
refreshers. These meetings can be an opportunity for current/returning members to meet
new board and commission members to build comradery and network as well as pass on
institutional knowledge. In-person meetings can also help foster and imbue in new members
what the culture and ethos of an oversight body might be. Further, if the City follows
recommendations in part 1 to further good governance policies, it can leverage and expand
on those guides and resources during training sessions.

While the League may not have the resources to o�er regular training sessions like the City,
it can be one of many community stakeholders to demand these from the City. But a major
contribution from the League could come from maintaining a diverse resume bank of
qualified residents who it would endorse and recommend to the City for new and/or vacant
positions on oversight bodies. Since the League already has ties to community groups, it
could leverage these relationships, and build new ones to ensure that there continues to be a
diverse pipeline of talent ready to serve. To cultivate talent, the League could also partner
with professional development organizations with missions to develop young talent like New
Leaders Council.

Improving Oversight Body Sta� Capacity
This assessment found that the most e�ective oversight bodies were the ones with the most
resources to have dedicated sta�. The City of Oakland currently sta�s oversight bodies in
an uneven way as administrative funds vary between measures; this is unsustainable and
must change. As a progressive-minded community that is committed to compensating
workers for their work, this assessment strongly recommends that the City dedicates a core
team of sta� to supporting oversight bodies as their main job.

Dedicating at least one sta�er to each oversight body would ensure that sta� are able to
develop subject-matter expertise as well as institutional knowledge to support members.
This would also address issues with inconsistent training of members, and address the
unreasonable expectation that some members learn about their role in oversight bodies
alone with only written resources. Further, allocating sta� to solely support oversight bodies
would allow them to develop relationships with members of oversight bodies and support
their development. This kind of collaboration has the potential to foster greater synergy and

18
32 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

gailkong
Highlight



innovation between oversight bodies and sta� to addressing pressing issues that come
before them.

The League can play a major role in advocating for the City and the City Council to establish
this new o�ce of sta�ers dedicated solely to supporting the 30 plus oversight bodies that
are supposed to represent the interest of the Oakland residents. As part of its duties to
inform voters and support measure proponents, the League could also better educate
voters and proponents on the need for, and value of increased allocations to administration.

There are specific recommendations for each oversight body listed in Appendix D.

Conclusions and Reflections

After interviewing all the oversight members, relevant stakeholders, and attending several
public meetings, it is clear that there are mixed perspectives about the value and impact of
oversight bodies. However, three common things that were apparent across the board are:
(1) oversight bodies provide great skills training and leadership opportunities for future civic
engagement; (2) the City is not capable of managing their budgets with due diligence on
their own so oversight bodies can play a very important and influential role in local
democracy; (3) and every oversight body should significantly improve their engagement
with the public. What’s also clear is that more resources and capacity is required in order for
these oversight bodies to function properly and e�ectively. These oversight bodies need
more training and development throughout their tenure. An inquiry into the Auditor's office
capacities and processes might be helpful as well since the Auditor has more and more
audits to conduct, but is rarely given the extra resources to do them in a timely and efficient
manner.

While most of the preceding recommendations are overarching policy changes that the City
and League can enact, it is also important for measure proponents to be intentional about
measure language. Since language adopted from ballot measures is technically legally
binding, a key recommendation for the League is to ensure future measure text include at
least three things: how often a commission or oversight body should meet per year, at
minimum; how often an oversight body should update documents made publicly available
to voters; and the number of audits that the City should conduct. Proponents should also
consider whether they want to codify how often an oversight body should interact with the
public and/or voters.

19
33 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Appendix

Appendix A - Guides for authoring new strong ballot measures

❏ Ballot Measure Language -
❏ Measure should clearly outline qualifications to become a member

❏ Qualifications of Members are reasonable and not a barrier
❏ Qualifications represent the best interests of Oakland voters
❏ Qualifications ensure members have lived experiences or have

skills/knowledge pertaining to specific ballot measure issue and/or
program proposal

❏ To the extent possible, qualifications ensure diversity and equity
among its desired committee members, using Oakland’s OEI as a
baseline

❏ Measure should clearly articulate an equitable application process
❏ Accessible application (paper and online and available in top 3 most

spoken non-English languages in Oakland)
❏ Ensures eligible diverse candidates can and are encouraged to apply
❏ Includes reasonable term limits and term lengths

❏ Measure should clearly calls for a diverse composition of the committee
❏ Again, to the extent possible, qualifications ensure diversity and equity

among its desired committee members, using Oakland’s OEI as a
reference point

❏ Measure should clearly articulates the duties and responsibilities of the
committee members

❏ Measure should clearly articulate how the tax funds will be raised and what it
can be specifically used for

❏ Measure clearly indicates number of times oversight body will meet in a year,
preferably at least 6 times a year but the goal should be 9 times a year

❏ Measure clearly articulates a reporting and accountability process that is both
reasonable and useful to the oversight body and Oakland City Council and
other stakeholders - at least once a year, but aim for twice a year

❏ Measure includes a spending percentage/budget for oversight body to carry
out its duties and responsibilities - recommend between 2-5% of tax revenue
where able

❏ If it is a tax measure, indicate that at least one City sta� member will dedicate
a specific amount of sta� time and support the oversight body

❏ Measure includes clear language on process for annual audit and review that
is to be conducted at least every 2 fiscal year cycles

20
34 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Mkvx4sgMTuSBfA-Uk1TQ_zcWJPfXw7Od4D9rn_0M1Cc/edit


Appendix B - KPIs/Rubric to Assess Oversight Bodies

21
35 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1H719xMV6GLDx2lTAptDRUMQ8yDUfDL1xj3UHzpgYZ9o/edit#gid=0


Appendix C - Examples of Oversight Bodies’ Action/Strategic Plans

a. IBOND:

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Zo3lbPsWjlE9BN5zip5qU

9yZn-39kOD 7/view?usp=sharing

b. LAC:
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1KXMU4u6RWY0H_cHtls

82XRF0dDyk NZLt/view?usp=sharing

c. SSBCAB:

https://drive.google.com/file/d/16YWI3SKBI872B6WLy_kP

g60bU0j7rd bq/view?usp=sharing

22
36 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Zo3lbPsWjlE9BN5zip5qU9yZn-39kOD7/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Zo3lbPsWjlE9BN5zip5qU9yZn-39kOD7/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Zo3lbPsWjlE9BN5zip5qU9yZn-39kOD7/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1KXMU4u6RWY0H_cHtls82XRF0dDykNZLt/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1KXMU4u6RWY0H_cHtls82XRF0dDykNZLt/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1KXMU4u6RWY0H_cHtls82XRF0dDykNZLt/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/16YWI3SKBI872B6WLy_kPg60bU0j7rdbq/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/16YWI3SKBI872B6WLy_kPg60bU0j7rdbq/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/16YWI3SKBI872B6WLy_kPg60bU0j7rdbq/view?usp=sharing


Appendix D - Recommendations Specific to Oversight Bodies (mostly based on
interview feedback)

1. Measure KK/I-Bond Committee

a. Update website more regularly with meeting minutes and meeting schedule

→ set a consistent meeting schedule and make it apparent on website

b. Improve community engagement through more accessible

1-pager summary reports and town hall-like meetings so the public can easily

see where Measure KK dollars have gone to because many improvement

projects have been completed or are in progress as a result of Measure KK

dollars, but that information is difficult to find even for interested public

members like the LWVO

c. LWVO should inquire into what projects have been funded and where

they exist - are these projects in the most

under-resourced/impacted neighborhoods? Are Oakland’s vulnerable

communities being prioritized?

2. Measure Q/PRAC

a. Make sure commissioners understand their duties as Park Liaisons and

consistently provide reports on the Parks in their respective districts/the

parks they liais to

b. Commissioners should actively seek opportunities to engage with

communities at their Parks through Park Rec Advisory Boards and meetings

with park patrons at least twice a month where possible

c. Set commission goals/action plan for Measure Q as a whole and within

Measure Q ad-hoc committee → accept and enact advice and suggestions

from Measure Q author

d. Both the Commission and LWVO should inquire into why the paid City sta�

member has not attended meetings, or actively correspond with oversight

members to determine why they have been absent → paid sta� must be

present at all proceeding meetings

e. Ensure there is more overlap the next time there’s a vacancy to be filled in

order for new commissioners to learn quickly and efficiently. The most

recent cycle had about 3 commissioners cycle out which can be difficult to

fill all at once. It would be helpful to stagger vacancies so as to avoid having

1 or more vacant spots at one time

23
37 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



f. Conduct a Needs Assessment of the Districts with the fewest or most under

resourced parks and prioritize serving and improving parks in those districts

in the next budget cycle. Assessment should consider factors like:

g. Which district(s) are under-parked?

h. What is causing the under-resourced parks?

i. Which communities are most impacted in these under-parked districts

3. Measure Q and W/Commission on Homelessness

a. Similar to PRAC, Commission on Homelessness should create a committee

specific to Measure Q and another one specific to Measure W to ensure

appropriate attention and care; and Commission should actively meet with

relevant departments to devise KPIs and performance metrics for each

respective Measure outcomes

b. Oversight body can encourage city to strive towards retaining next paid

sta� member for at least the next year and strive to prevent turnover

c. Oversight body should inquire into the City for a report update on Measure

W funds and determine KPIs for how the oversight on those funds should be

carried out

d. Prioritize setting a consistent schedule and taking intentional e�orts to keep

website updated regularly

4. Measure Z/SSOC

A. SSOC is working on creating an external website for more public access and

engagement - this could be similar to LAC’s individual website. Recommend

setting a goal of launching it within the next 6 months

B. SSOC should seek another presentation update from all involved

stakeholders, particularly Police and Fire Department since Dept. of Violence

Prevention (DVP) has already been meeting with SSOC recently →

presentation updates should include department’s goals and how they’ve

shifted since pandemic and recent political events across the country

5. Measure D/Library Advisory Commission (LAC)

A. Work on actively recruiting from Latinx community in District 3 to ensure as

many communities are being represented. This can be done through trusted

CBOs and stakeholder relationships (i.e. peer to peer networking)

B. Conduct a Needs assessment of the Districts with the fewest or most under

24
38 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



resourced libraries and prioritize those districts in the next budget cycle

C. Continue to inquire with other relevant departments like Office of Public

Works (OPW) and question why hiring delays continue (likely due to covid

pandemic but would be helpful to have consistent updates on hiring

schedule)

D. Share knowledge and best practices on engagement with the public and

external communities with other oversight bodies

6. Measure HH/SSBAB

A. Conduct a cost-benefit analysis of the Sugar Tax and determine if it did

indeed reduce sales or consumption of sugary/sweetened beverages in

Oakland. I recognize this might be an aspirational goal

B. Conduct deeper research into whether the tax works in favor of consumers

or is the tax passed onto customers - are distributors passing the tax onto

consumers? Are consumers consuming less SSBs? There are competing

articles on this topic so it would be helpful for the SSBCAB to know in order

to accurately campaign for the tax again when it’s due for renewal.

Another factor that might require more inquiry is whether the original intention of

the Sugar-Sweetened Beverage tax should continue to be marketed or taken as a

general tax instead of a special tax. The SSB-tax was designed to generate tax

revenues from companies in Oakland that sold sugar-sweetened beverages that

would fund programs and initiatives to combat obesity and support Oakland

constituents most impacted by unhealthy foods and sugary drink products.

Champions of the bill believed that creating a special tax that would earn two-thirds

of the Oakland vote would be extremely difficult so instead of creating a special tax,

they campaigned for a general tax, and marketed it as a general tax revenue

generator that would fund those healthy initiative programs. This meant that any

tax revenues generated from this sugar-sweetened beverage tax, would be directed

to Oakland’s general fund, and the City would not necessarily have to designate

any funds to the healthy initiative programs that the campaign organizers,

proponents, and constituents hoped it would.

However, one Councilmember I interviewed said that perhaps campaigners of the

bill were slightly “misleading” when they first marketed the bill and “made promises

they couldn’t keep.” Indeed, this created a huge public outcry the first year the first

25
39 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



tax funds were received when Mayor Scha� initially proposed to use the SSB Tax

revenue to fill the budget deficit instead of the health programs that the Measure

was intended for.2 According to one of the interviewees, proponents of the measure

started the public protests and the City Council essentially “backed down” and

re-allocated more of the tax funds to those special programs than they initially

proposed to. It still was not as much as the proponents would have liked, but the

final amount allocated to these healthy initiatives ended up being more after the

public protests.

With strong community organizing and public protests, oversight bodies could have

great influence in steering the City in certain directions when deciding the budget

and allocating general tax revenues. However, I believe the bigger question here is

whether the SSB should be continued as a general tax if those revenues are being

spent on certain programs and initiatives that were not part of the general purpose

funds prior to it. That is, are voters aware that this is a general tax and not actually

a special tax? Is the City going to continue funding healthy initiative programs

based on community interests or will they use their Constitutional powers to use the

funds on whatever they deem necessary in the next budget cycle?

7. Measure V/Cannabis Regulatory Commission (CRC)

A. Continue to ensure policies and approaches are rooted in equity and

diversity

B. Did not take much time to observe them so my recommendations for CRC

are not as in-depth

8. OUSD Measure G1 Oversight Commission

A. Continue to maintain and expand schools and community engagement

B. Consider changing the audit deadline because the December 31 date doesn’t

correspond with the audit deadline which is typically at the end of the fiscal

year which is usually around the June/July calendar time frame. The

oversight commission has had to set up a separate audit review process just

2

https://www.sfgate.com/bayarea/article/Authors-of-Oakland-s-soda-tax-say-mayor-is-1110
7037.php

26
40 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://www.sfgate.com/bayarea/article/Authors-of-Oakland-s-soda-tax-say-mayor-is-11107037.php
https://www.sfgate.com/bayarea/article/Authors-of-Oakland-s-soda-tax-say-mayor-is-11107037.php


because the dates are di�erent.

C. Consider soliciting youth input and participation where possible.

Middle-School students are a little younger and might be more difficult to

recruit but even an 8th/9th grader student could benefit from using the

opportunity to learn more about civic engagement and school funding

D. Similar to all the other oversight bodies, engagement and amplification of

ballot measure progress is always helpful and could be improved. Consider

amplifying more 1-pager summaries and press/media coverage like the

recent Measure N news coverage.

9. OUSD Measure N Oversight Commission

A. Consider soliciting more high school youth participation or consider creating

an ordinance to allow for a 1-2 year Youth commissioner position or

internship. It would create an opportunity for Youth to get involved with their

school district funding, provide a professional development career path

option for them (see Measure N in action), and would help build the pipeline

of civic participation in Oakland youth. There are already two Student Board

Members on the School Board, perhaps we can mirror this at least for the

Measure N oversight body.

B. With the renewal of Measure N nearing in the 2022 and 2024 cycle, the

oversight body should take care to continue recording and amplifying

success stories of the students who’ve benefited from Measure N, as well as

the significant data points in OUSD student retention and academic

achievement. With such grassroots oriented legislation, it’ll be vital to

maintain community input and support for the tax measure again either

through more advertisement of students’ success or public town halls and

media coverage like the recent Oaklandside article.

27
41 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://oaklandside.org/2021/04/26/college-and-career-pathways-oakland-schools-measure/


Recommendations to Strengthen Oversight Bodies in Oakland, California

Problems/Issues Identified Recommendations

City of Oakland League of Women Voters and other Stakeholders

Building
Capacity of
members of
oversight
bodies

- Some board members are not
adequately trained and oriented for the
bodies the are selected for, so members
sometimes do not understand the
“power” they hold

- Inconsistent training and orientation
process for new oversight members who
fill vacancies

- Host a central site for vacancies and
new oversight body opportunities with
clear deadlines and next steps for
candidates

- Maintain relationships with community
groups to ensure that applicant pool is
diverse when new commissions and
board

- Offer quarterly trainings for new board
members - whether it’s for newly formed
commissions or someone filling a
vacancy

- Maintain a resume bank of qualified and diverse
candidates for boards and commissions

- Maintain relationships with community groups to
ensure that applicant pool is diverse when new
commissions and boards form or have
openings (for example, building partnership with
groups like New Leaders Council which
cultivates new talent in communities across
America)

- Support the City, and advocate for it to conduct
regular trainings to ensure oversight body
members are equipped for their duties

Building
Capacity of
Staff for
Commissions
and Board

- Most staff are overworked and not
compensated for time spent supporting
oversight boards, in addition to their day
jobs with the City

- Staff may have subject-matter expertise
but my not be equipped to support
and/or manage a board/commission

- Make room in city budget to dedicate
funds for an office dedicated to staffing
boards and commissions

- Consider the model of other state
legislatures where there is a core team
of staff who support principals.

- Advocate for permanent staff for each position -
the city should invest more in this

- Educate residents on the importance of having
a higher % of measure funds to go towards
administration fees to support dedicated staff

Improving good
governance
practices
among
oversight

- Lack of organized, standard website for
each oversight body

- Lack of organized, public access to
documents from oversight documents

- Lack of consistent good governance

- Provide resources to oversight bodies
modeling good governance practices, ie:
regular meetings, long term planning,
member recruitment, etc...

- Creating a central clearing house for

- Advocate for the City to provide resources to
create and offer resources to oversight bodies
modeling good governance

- Ensuring that documents on the City’s
clearinghouse website are updated regularly -

Attachment 8b

42 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



bodies practices for each Commission:
documents are not updated in a timely
manner; unclear if bodies meet regularly;
unclear if bodies conduct long term
planning

information of all Boards and
Commissions including:

- Meeting links and information
- Documents

- For example, measure
text, and

- Posting date of latest
audit for each board and
commission

this might come in the form of advocating for an
ordinance to mandate how often documents
should be updated.

- Educating voters about:
- The existence of the clearing house and

role of oversight bodies - perhaps via a
marketing campaign

- The need to conduct regular audits of
measure/bond funds

- Holding the City accountable for conducting
regular audits as dictated by city ordinances
and ballot measures

LWVO should create a template for sample measure
text that includes language specifying:

- How often oversight boards should meet
- How often documents should be update and

provided for the public
- How often audits should be conducted
- Specific qualifications and desired skills for

composition of oversight body

*Proponents should also consider whether they want to
codify how often a Commission should interact with the
public/voters

43 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Date: 2 May 2024

To: League of Women Voters (LWVO) - Oakland chapter
From: Safety and Services Oversight Commission

Subject: Reevaluation of Final LWVO Capstone Report Findings Regarding the SSOC from 2021

The following is a summary as to why the SSOC feels they should receive Strong Oversight Body status
rather than one of Medium Strength.

Issue 1: Improving Good Governance Conduct regular meetings that are easily accessible to the public and
widely publicized; conduct long-term planning; and broad outreach for diverse member recruitment. (page
4.1)

SSOC Response: Our meetings have been publicized via public notice and via our CARE program for
broader outreach. The CARE program was develop through Part III of our Strategic Plan. We've had no
canceled meetings in the past 2 years. We've conducted CARE outreach all over Oakland and have also used
it for recruitment, with multiple applications received throughout that process, including the appointment of at
least 1 appointee. We’ve also posted about the SSOC on social media, which is helpful in getting the word out
and helped persuade the appointment of another appointee.

Long-term planning has been implemented via our Strategic Plan, and the SSOC dashboard initiatives, where
long-term agenda planning and planning for ad hocs are located. We agree that good governance and
expectations are key to establishing a standard way of operating and can provide an opportunity for shaping
how commissions engage with the public. Here’s a link to our strategic plan which has significantly improved
our self-governance and member capacity.

Issue 2: The City is also well-positioned to standardize how information about and from oversight bodies is
presented to the public. This assessment recommends the City create a central clearinghouse that provides,
in a standardized format, information about each oversight body, including adoption/formation background
(including original measure text), when the body meets, and how to attend meetings. (page 4, last
paragraph)

SSOC Response: To help facilitate the public's attendance at meetings, the SSOC has led an initiative to
allow commissioners and members of the public to view and participate in meetings remotely. This resulted in
the new remote meeting amendment to the SSOC Bylaws that the CAO office approved and will be
disseminated to all city boards and commissions, which should improve access to meetings. We also agree
with the idea of having a clearinghouse. Uniformity, increased transparency, and a standard way for how to
engage with each commission. We also agree with the idea of having the LWVO or another organization audit
the respective commissions to ensure that they’re following pre-developed standard operating procedures.

1

Attachment 8c

44 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://www.oaklandca.gov/documents/ssoc-2022-2024-strategic-plan-2


Issue 3: Improving Oversight Body Member Capacity. Leverage relationships and build new ones to ensure
that there continues to be a diverse pipeline of talent ready to serve. To cultivate talent, the League could also
partner with professional development organizations with missions to develop young talent like New Leaders
Council. (page 5.2)

SSOC Response: We concur with this assessment and have also discussed leveraging our relationship with
LWVO to apply pressure for new appointees, to assist us in our recruitment efforts. We've also cultivated
relationships with new and other organizations such as Men of Valor, the Violence Prevention Coalition, and
the Reimagining Public Safety Task Force, which has resulted in multiple appointments. Making sure we have
enough commissioners has assisted us with accomplishing all of the objectives within our strategic plan and
then building on that foundation towards increased recommendations on how to accomplish the objectives of
Measure Z.

Issue 4: Looking to the Future section. A key recommendation for the League is to ensure future measure
text includes at least 3 things: how often a commission or oversight body should meet per year, at minimum;
how often an oversight body should update documents made publicly available to voters; and the number of
audits that the City should conduct. Proponents should also consider whether they want to codify how often
an oversight body should interact with the public and/or voters. (page 6, last paragraph)

SSOC Response: Within our SSOC recommendation to create an oversight body for MACRO, we agreed to
add how often the commission should agree to meet per year. If/when it's adopted by a council member, we
can recommend including how they should update documents and make them publicly available. Also, include
the number of audits that the City should conduct to get the process moving regarding these 3 minimum
things.

Issue 5: Background on oversight bodies section. Oversight bodies do, however, have the authority to carry
out independent research, listen to and hear from constituents on their recommendations/priorities, and
provide feedback and recommendations to City departments/agencies. (page 8, 2nd to last sentence)

SSOC Response: We agree and have conducted our own independent research while developing our
strategic plan. Part III of the plan developed our outreach team, also known as CARE, which stands for
Community Activation Research and Elevation. To date, we've conducted outreach to 11 different groups in
order to hear from a diverse set of constituents throughout the city. Some of their recommendations were
adopted by us, and we presented them to the city council at our annual joint meeting for consideration, such
as the further development of MACRO and the implementation of a Brown Act-governed commission to
oversee it. The recommendation to install a self-triage 911 system is also something that constituents have
recommended to us. Implementation of Recommendation #53 (i.e., Verified Response) from the RPSTF is
also a community-based recommendation provided by a constituent. it was fully implemented by the City
Council in February of this year. Part IV of our strategic plan is completely devoted to making
recommendations and includes a scoring system for how to create objectives.

2
45 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Issue 6: Scope of Assessment. A Research question. What are the current gaps and challenges among
Oakland oversight bodies? What’s working well? What are some recommendations or changes you would like
to see in order to improve oversight functions? (page 10, 1st paragraph)

SSOC Response: We've created a survey to get feedback from former commissioners regarding what their
biggest challenges were, what would they have changed about MZ, and were there any additional support,
resources, or authority they felt that the SSOC needed to be effective, which is in line with this set of
questions. We’ve also invited former commissioners to come to our meetings and discuss these issues with
us. One former Chairperson attended our April meeting, and another former Vice-Chair may attend our May
meeting. The purpose of surveying these folks is to provide feedback at our joint meeting with the city council
at the end of the year that will address “what’s working well” and “what are the current gaps and challenges”
that commissions face.

Issue 7: Findings. "While oversight bodies in Oakland are operating relatively more efficiently than they were
a decade ago, not all bodies have improved equally over time. This is due to a combination of differences in
how oversight bodies are formed, a difference in the skills and expertise of commission and board members,
and major differences in staff resources and experience. This assessment focuses on these 3 areas because
they are essential to an effective and functioning oversight body: empowered and qualified board and
commission members, empowered and resourced staff, and strong governance practices. Since oversight
bodies do not have any legal authority, their power comes from being trusted sources of information that the
public can rely on; this also allows them to leverage transparency with voters. This trust that the public has in
oversight bodies can only be maintained if oversight bodies observe good governance practices, in addition to
having capable members, who are supported by knowledgeable and dedicated staff." (page 12, paragraph 1)

SSOC Response: We feel that we've proven to be trusted agents of the public through the creation of our
CARE team and by developing relationships with various groups from the public. We specifically created a
forum where residents could ask questions regarding MACRO to increase public transparency about the
program since one doesn’t exist. The recommendations on our MACRO ad hoc spreadsheet reflect the views
of members of community stakeholders. We recently finalized a recommendation to create a MACRO
commission, which received buy-in from many public stakeholders.

Issue 8: Strong Oversight Bodies. The main strengths that these oversight bodies possess are: Dedicated,
informed, and knowledgeable supporting staff member who advocates for and values the oversight body. All
have annual retreats to set a strategic/action plan and metrics for themselves and have consistent reporting
track records. The Commissioners appear passionate about the subject matter/issue relating to the ballot
measure and the Chair(s) relatively have strong leadership skills to lead/guide the oversight body in
vision/strategic planning. (page 12, last paragraph, bullets 1-3)

SSOC Response: Since this report, we had a retreat last year and have also created our own strategic plan
and an SSOC Dashboard to track all of our initiatives and discussions. We’ve also always had a good
relationship with our staff, which makes us stronger as a team. All of the commissioners are passionate and
knowledgeable about accomplishing the objectives within our strategic plan as well as our SSOC initiatives.

3
46 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1Nv25BYsZO3Wf3C1UjD4LFgqbhfY7nFcDUX-22yIV5Mc/edit#responses


Additionally, multiple commissioners are subject matter experts on areas we oversee, such as Operation
Ceasefire, 911 improvements strategies, and geographical policing strategies. We’re also passionate about
the subject matter and future of the departments we oversee which is why we recently voted to promote our
support for the new version of MZ and to release a press release regarding our support.

Issue 9: They actively engage with the public and/or have set community events or visits to engage with their
respective communities and City Council members. (page 12, last paragraph, bullet 4)

SSOC Response: We've worked very closely and developed strong ties with groups such as CPA, the
Violence Prevention Coalition, the MACRO CAB, and several NCPC’s. We actively engage with the public
through our CARE team.

Issue 10: These oversight bodies also have dedicated staff who are very engaged, supportive, and
responsive to the commissioners and do not have competing duties with other oversight bodies, or are hired
to specifically support the implementation of the ballot measure. (page 12, last paragraph, bullet 5)

SSOC Response: Despite having multiple staff members, the latest of which supports three commissions,
we've still increased our production and oversight capabilities.

Issue 11: The SSOC’s April public meeting included the presentation updates from the Department of
Violence Prevention on their FY19-20 activities. The presentation was very informative and indicative of the
department’s intentional efforts to reduce violence. However, the Commission canceled seven meetings last
year when the pandemic started, which made progress and activities difficult to conduct. Moreover, “safety” is
measured in a variety of ways dependent on the ballot measure goals, and there are now a number of new
safety concerns that the pandemic has brought on. All of these factors make it difficult to determine if the
SSOC had any recent guiding metrics or outcomes beyond the standard departmental metrics. Moreover, my
interview was with a newer member who expressed reservations on the commissions actual efficacy and
direction but acknowledged the City’s efforts to solve such a complex problem: “When the voters wanted an
oversight commission, they wanted to make absolutely sure their tax dollars would be spent on what they
voted on it...And when the City comes in with their budget, all we can do is “yeah I see why you’re spending
money on this, it’s not like we can propose what they can spend on these [dollars on]. (page 13)

SSOC Response: No meetings have been canceled since the release of this report. We’ve also fostered and
aided the development of a DVP dashboard to make it easier for the public to have access to outcome metrics
beyond the standard departmental metrics DVP has historically shared. We’ve also built off of the efficacy
findings regarding MZ within our strategic plan via Part IV, the recommendations section, to provide more
deliverables to the community at large. We’ve also proposed what the city spends its funds on via
recommendations such as ASAP to PSAP, which is a 911 improvement strategy since no specific 911
improvement strategies are outlined in the ordinance. We also recently got a recommendation implemented
where, along with the assistance and approval of the city council, the burglary ordinance was updated to
reflect a new Verified Response requirement in order to cut down on OPD spending time on having to respond

4
47 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://drive.google.com/file/u/1/d/1JW2uAykm4_RaC8GFvtsCX1hajIDlOpfB/view?usp=sharing


to burglary alarms 98% of which turn out to be false alarms, which equates to 4.5-6.8 annual OPD FTE hours
wasted per year.

5
48 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



CARE: Community Activation, 
Research, & Elevation

Members: 
Omar, Yoana, 
Gloria Presentation (hyperlink): 

2023-2024 Presentations Date Location Feedback 2024 Presentations Date Loation Potential Presentations Location Status

NCPC 22x Feb 28th 2023 D4 None to note. NCPC 35y Mar 27th 2024 (in-person) D7 Associated Residents of Sequoyah Highlands D7 TBD

League of Women Voters May 9th 2023 City-wide

Upgraded us to a high 
functioning board. Willing to 
assist with vacancy advocacy. NCPC 35x

Apr 3rd 2024 (zoom). 
Postponed to June 5th D7 Sobrante Park Resident Action Council D7 TBD

Violence Prevention Coalition July 17th 2023 City-wide

Interested in MACRO 
development and 
transparency May 2nd 2024 Zoom LWVO follow-up XX TBD

NCPC 14y & 16x Aug 16th 2023 D1 & D2

Recruited Commissioner 
Cure. Residents need to see 
DVP success stories. CM Kalb 
shared the OFD call center # 
and said to use if you can't get 
through to 911. NCPC 32Y D7 Emailed Feb 1st, No Reply

Mt. Zion Missionary Baptist Church Sept 30th 2023 D3 None to note. NCPC 31Y & 31Z D7 Emailed Feb 1st, No Reply
Delta Town Hall @ City of Refuge Dec 9th 2023 D7 Interested in RPSTF rec's.

NCPC 32x Feb 15th 2024 D7
Interested in being able to get 
through to 911 and 311 faster.

NCPC 33x & 34x Feb 21st 2024 D7

Collaboration with other 
boards? Invited to Mar 20th 
business leader meeting to 
discuss Knightscope 
technology

Attachment 8d

49 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



MACRO Development: Improves 
911 response times by taking a 
portion of the 911 call volume

Training Status Quantitative Analysis Status Transparency Status

Develop 911 Dispatcher 
Curriculum

TBD? Awaiting comparable 
curriculums for comparison. 

Percentage increase of 
diverted 911 calls per 
month.

Is that a part of their 
monthly report?

Launch public 
information officer 
position In progress by OFD

Train dispatchers and MACRO 
responders on what their 
parameters are. TBD?

Review stats from other 
organizations Waiting to see their stats. 

Create a direct phone 
number COMPLETE. PUBLISHED as 510-44-MACRO in March 2024

Evaluate total scope of calls 
MACRO will ultimately be able to 
go on. Done during RPSTF process?

SSOC MACRO 
Sessions

In progress: tentatively put on agenda for April. Need to discuss with MACRO & CAB. Elliott 
agreed to attending these meetings during our conversation in the hallway on 2/20.

Conduct a daily or monthly review 
of calls for service and discuss why 
certain calls could have gone to 
MACRO or not, and figure out how 
to do more with MACRO resources 
going forward Not happening yet. Public CAB Meetings

At the Sept or October 2023 meeting OFD committed to having all CAB meetings public in 
2024. Held last meeting in Hearing Room 1, but it was not open to the public. Was initially 
invited to 2/19 meeting then receiving a cancellation notice for. Told by CAB members it was 
still happening and was asked to attend so I did. While there was told it wasn't open to the 
public when I tried to speak. Didn't ask me to leave but didn't feel welcome. Was told that I 
couldn't make any comments unless there was time at the end. They've also changed their 
mind and now state that they'll only be doing 2 public meetings per year. When TBD. CAB 
meetings are dysfunctional in ters of what's expected of the members. They appear to starting 
from square 1 in terms of what their role should be. In addition, the Jan meeting was cancelled 
and rescheduled 3 times. I received invites to those meetings as well. 

Recommend to city 
council for MACRO to 
be governed by a city 
of Oakland 
Commission that's 
governed by the 
Brown Act for 
increased 
transparency and 
inclusiveness.

Recommendation in progress. Vote on recommendation now then present it to city council at 
the joint meeting? Recruit a Councilmmeber to create a resolution to initiate the development 
of a city of Oakland MACRO Commission that's governed by the Brown Act.  Link to draft 
Resolution Ordinance. CM Fife declined sponsoring the ordinance but CM Reid and Kaplan 
are intereted in discussing further. 

Request MACRO be 
audited by the city 
auditor. Discuss at April 2024 meeting. Holding off for now. 
Create a public 
records request 
regarding MACRO 
inter-departmental 
communicaitons Discuss at April 2024 meeting. Holding off for now. 

Attachment 9a

50 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



SSOC DRAFT

ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES FOR OVERSIGHT OF THE MOBILE
ASSISTANCE COMMUNITY RESPONDERS OF OAKLAND (MACRO) IN ORDER TO
IMPROVE PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY AND CREATE TRANSPARENT OPERATIONAL,
BUSINESS, FINANCIAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE MACRO PRACTICES

WHEREAS the city of Oakland has established public safety as one of its highest priorities and
has determined that safety is essential for a thriving economy, healthy community, and quality of
life for all Oakland residents; and

WHEREAS issues with police misconduct and innefective deescalation tactics and training in
response to members of the public who are in a mental health crises have at times resulted in
excessive force and unnecessary loss of life at the hands of the police, as was the case during
the Joshua Pawlik killing when the Oakland Police Department used their paramilitary BearCat
armored vehicle as a shooting platform to apply deadly force; this incident was the impetus for
adopting the Mobile Assistance Community Responders of Oakland (MACRO) program; and

WHEREAS investing in a coordinated system of non-sworn personnel intervention efforts before
injury occurs will reduce economic and emotional costs and is a fiscally responsible use of
taxpayer dollars when implemented efficiently and effectively; and

WHEREAS the current community input model for the Mobile Assistance Community
Responders of Oakland is through the use of a Community Advisory Board (CAB) that is not
operating as a City of Oakland Brown Act governed board or commission making it difficult to
assess the efficacy of their operations; CAB meetings are not open to the public; recordings are
not made, and minutes are not kept, making the functioning of the current CAB essentially
confidential; and

WHEREAS members of the CAB have reported they have little to no direction on their duties.
that meetings are not held on a consistent time or day, that there historically has been no set
frequency, and that meetings are often canceled on short notice, making it difficult for them to
plan their daily lives; CAB members have further stated that their input on the direction of the
CAB and MACRO program is consistently disregarded or overlooked; and

WHEREAS the public perception is that the current percentage of 911 calls that MACRO
handles in the place of the Oakland Police Department (OPD) is far less than the percentage
forecasted by the study completed during the city of Oakland’s Reimagining Public Safety Task
Force process; and

WHEREAS the Oakland Police Department 911 Call Center has been out of California Office of
Emergency Services (CAL OES) standards for call answering times for several years and is
currently at risk of losing critical state funding or the ability to take 911 calls altogether if 911 call
answering times are not improved; MACRO was designed to take a portion of 911 call center
volume, resulting in a reduced overall call center volume and increased chances of meeting
CAL OES standards; and

1

Attachment 9b

51 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



SSOC DRAFT

WHEREAS there is no evidence that MACRO has had an impact on improving 911 response,
as anticipated; and

WHEREAS one of the duties of the Public Safety and Services Oversight Commission (SSOC)
in the course of their oversight over Measure Z is to oversee and recommend strategies for
improving 911 response times and is therefore recommending the implementation of this
Resolution; and

BE IT RESOLVED the Oakland City Council establishes a City of Oakland Commission to
oversee MACRO, with full Brown Act transparency requirements, and with the direction that this
Commission meet no less than monthly; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that that the MACRO Commission shall: (1) receive reports on
critical data including but not limited to: he number and percentage of 911 calls diverted from the
Oakland Police Department and Oakland Fire Department call center to MACRO; the number of
requests for service received through electronic mail (email); the number of requests for service
received by their publicly shared phone numbers; (2) evaluate the total scope of calls for service
MACRO will ultimately be able to respond to per day; (3) conduct a weekly or monthly review of
calls for service and discuss why certain calls could have gone to MACRO or not, and figure out
how to do more with MACRO resources thereafter; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Oakland City Council instructs the Oakland Fire Department
(OFD) and the Oakland Police Department to: (1) make public and implement clear and
understandable policies regarding MACRO call for service capabilities and limitations; (2) make
public any training and curriculum developed for 911 operators and MACRO responders,
including training on theparameters of calls that can be diverted to MACRO; (3) review statistics
from comparable agencies in an effort to conduct quantitative analysis on how they can become
more functional, efficient and effective in responding to calls for service; (4) develop and
implement a strategic plan that identifies an organizational structure and future plans to scale
the program to their maximum capabilities; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that each fiscal year, before the City adopts its two year policy
budget or its mid-cycle budget adjustments, the Oakland Fire Department shall submit to the
City Council, and the City Council shall adopt, a MACRO personnel hiring plan demonstrating
how the City will achieve and/or maintain a strength of force required by this Resolution for the
MACRO program to operate to its highest capabilities; the hiring plan will make use of
assumptions that department attrition rates, recruiting success, and other relevant factors
affecting the growth or shrinkage of the program will be comparable to the past two to four
years' experience; and

FINALLY, BE IT RESOLVED that the Oakland City Council finds and determines the forgoing
recitals are true and correct and hereby adopts and incorporates them into this Resolution.

2
52 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Attachment 10a

53 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



54 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



55 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



56 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



57 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



58 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



59 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



60 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



61 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



62 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



63 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



64 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



65 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



66 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



67 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



68 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



69 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



70 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



71 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



72 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



73 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



74 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



75 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Oakland, CA – May 9, 2024 – The city of Oakland Public Safety & Services Oversight Commission (SSOC) has declared its
support for the passage of the Oakland Community Violence Reduction and Emergency Response Act. This measure aims
to replace and enhance the existing Public Safety and Services Violence Prevention Act, known as Measure Z (MZ), which
the SSOC oversees. MZ is set to expire this December, as is the SSOC. Funds from the new measure would be used to (1)
reduce homicides, robberies, car-jackings and break-ins, domestic violence, and gun-related violence; (2) improve 911
response times; and (3) reduce the incidence of human trafficking, including the sexual exploitation of minors. 

The new measure would replace the eight-member City Council-appointed, Mayoral-approved SSOC with a five-member
Mayoral-appointed, City Council-approved Public Safety & Planning Oversight Commisison (SPOC). The SPOC would be
tasked with developing a Four-Year Community Violence Reduction Plan that the City Council may approve or reject. It
also increases the minimum staffing levels for sworn police from 678 to 700 officers as a starting point for qualifying to
receive funding. It also introduces an additional accountability measure by appointing a budget auditor. 

Like Measure Z, the Oakland Police Department (OPD) and Department of Violence Prevention (DVP) would receive a
60/40 split of the proceeds generated from an increased parcel and parking tax. The Fire Department's portion of the
proceeds would increase from a fixed amount of $2 million to $3 million. The majority of the funds distributed to DVP
would continue to be used to fund the community-based organizations that implement various strategies that are
designed to interrupt the cycle of violence and recidivism for Oakland’s most at-risk populations. Without funds from a
new proposal, DVP may not be able to fully execute all of its strategies as they’re currently designed. 

Operation Ceasefire, a proven strategy for reducing gun violence and co-run by OPD, DVP, and the faith-based
community, also receives a portion of its funding via MZ and would continue to be able to do so through this new
measure. All three groups have been invited to the May 20th SSOC meeting at 6:30 pm in Oakland City Hall, City Council
chambers, if you would like to join our discussion. Multiple OPD geographical policing strategies, such as Community
Resource Officers (CRO), would also be eligible to continue to be augmented with funds generated by this new measure.

Going forward, the SSOC is calling upon all Oakland residents to ensure this vital new measure appears on the November
ballot by signing the Oaklanders Together petition by their May 21st deadline. You can view the recordings of the SSOC’s
March (item 6) and April (item 8) meetings on our webpage listed below to learn more. Oaklanders Together is a
community-based coalition that agrees on a simple premise: immediate action is needed to reduce crime in Oakland and
make neighborhoods safer through a balanced approach by investing in both law enforcement and community-based
violence prevention measures. To endorse the new measure, visit oaklanderstogether.com.

(415) 513-8024

ofarmer@hotmail.com
www.ssoc-oakland

THE PUBLIC SAFETY & SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMISSION

ENDORSES:

THE COMMUNITY VIOLENCE REDUCTION AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE ACT

P R E S S  R E L E A S E

Press Contact:
Omar Farmer
SSOC Chairperson

Attachment 10b

76 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1JW2uAykm4_RaC8GFvtsCX1hajIDlOpfB/view
https://cao-94612.s3.us-west-2.amazonaws.com/documents/Measure-Z-Reso-85149.pdf
https://www.oaklandca.gov/meeting/public-safety-and-services-oversight-commission-6
https://www.oaklandca.gov/meeting/public-safety-and-services-oversight-commission-meeting
https://www.oaklanderstogether.com/
https://www.oaklandca.gov/boards-commissions/public-safety-and-services-violence-prevention-oversight-commission


Measure Z (MZ) Objectives:
I. Improve 911 Response 
Times and Other Services Strategic Plan Goals: I. Financial Accountability & Transparency
II. Reduce robberies,
homicides, burglaries, & gun 
violence II. Evaluation of Violence Reduction Measures
III. Invest in violence
prevention & intervention 
strategies III. Outreach & Engagement

IV. Policies & Practices to Improve MZ Outcomes

SSOC Initiatives 2024

Item Point of Contact History Status MZ Alignment

Strategic 
Plan 
Alignment

Strategic Plan - 
Core Value 
Alignment

Oversight Duty 
("Evaluate, 
Inquire, Review, 
Report, 
Recommend")

Equity 
Score

Future of MZ Paula, Yoana, Omar, Sonya

Last met in Nov 2023 w/ 
Mayor's reps. Met with MZ 
advocates in October 
2023. 

Staff is reaching out to Brooklyn & Zach. Oaklanders Together will be 
presenting in March. Included in survey to previous commissioners. Will 
vote on whether the SSOC will adopt it as a commission 
recommendaiton on 4/22. APPROVED, press release distributed on 
5/8/24. Posted to SSOC webpage on 5/9. 

MZ Section 
4A6F Part III

Impact Oriented, 
Evidence Based 
rec's

"Evaluate, Report, 
Recommend" 5 (6,9,10-12)

RPSTF-SSOC Alignment          
(sheet 4) Yoana, Omar

Omar & Yoana met with 
CM's Bas, Kaplan, and 
Fife on 1/29/24 via Zoom.

Met w/ CMs. Developed action items. Create a phase II presentation. 
Discuss creating an SSOC Resolution providing this as input for 
the SPOC 4-year violence reduction plan to be made at the joint 
meeting.

Objectives I, II, 
III Part II

Impact Oriented, 
Evidence Based 
rec's

"Evaluate & 
Recommend"

CARE Plan Yoana, Omar, Gloria, Wallace

In 2023 presented to: 
Grand Lake NC, 22x, Mt. 
Zion Missionary Baptist 
Church, LWVO, VPC

Offsite mtg? Presentations 2/21 (33x|34x|Zoom), 3/27|35y, 4/3 
(35x|Zoom) rescheduled for 6/5 @ 7 pm. Work w/ Wallace. Followed 
up with 1st CARE presentation receivers, i.e. the League of Women 
Voters on May 2nd and discussed reassessing the SSOC from a 
medium strength oversight commisison to a strong oversight 
body. Discussed having this decision finalized by August. 

MZ Section 1 
4A5 & 4A6F. 
Recommended 
for new MZ. Part III

Evidence Based - 
Qualitative data, 
Respect & 
Courtesy, 
Teamwork "Inquire & Report"

Verified Response Omar
Passed Rules Committee 
on 2/8. RPSTF Rec #53.

COMPLETE: Passed Public Safety on 2/27. Passed full city council on 
3/5 and 3/19. Objective I Part II

Evidence Based - 
Quanitative Data

"Evaluate & 
Recommend" 5 (2,6,7,9,10)

ASAP to PSAP Omar
Needs to be scheduled for 
the Rules Committee. 

Will know more before the end of March. Need to reconvene 
discussions with CM Kaplans office or another CM. Presentation to the 
Public Safety Committee approved for one of their meetings in 
July. July 9th or 23rd are their scheduled meeting dates. Objective I Part II

Evidence Based - 
Quanitative Data

"Evaluate & 
Recommend" 4 (2,6,9,10)

Nightscope Technology Omar

Use of autonomous robot 
tech to decrease calls for 
service and to deter auto 
burglaries and robberies.

Scheduled to present to the SSOC on Feb 26th. Have to reschedule D7 
3/20 mtg w/ business leaders. Discussed with Faith in Action East Bay 
on  4/12. Potentially removing as an SSOC recommendation 
depending on additional feedback. Objective I, II Part II

Evidence Based - 
Quanitative Data

"Evaluate & 
Recommend"

Zoom Meeting Access Paula, Yoana

Residents listening online 
are unable to make public 
comments. 

Waiting to hear back from CAO? Paula reached out to all 
commissioners via email for input.Yoana has drafted language we'll 
vote on it in on 3/25/24. Yoana to discuss on 4/22. Language 
approved. Staff to discuss how to put into action at May 20th 
meeting. Transparency N/A

Respect & 
Courtesy "Recommend"

Violence Prevention 
Dashboard Yoana, Omar

Promote a holistic 
apporach to public safety 
by sharing violence 
prevention and 
intervention resuts at 
DVP. 

Meeting with DVP, & D7 on March 27th. Yoana to update the 
commisison on 4/22. Urban Strategies/Institute will have it ready by 
August. Objective III Part II

Evidence Based - 
Quanitative and 
Qualitiative Data, 
Teamwork "Inquire & Report"

Evaluation Summary Omar, Kelly

Summarize all 
recommendations made 
through evaluations and 
summarize their status for 
the public

In progress. Currently working on OPD's evaluation from 2017 on sheet 
5. Kelly has made significant progress. We will discuss on 4/22. We'll 
discuss further at the May 20th meeting on incorporating this info 
into our joint meeting presentation. 

MZ Section 
4A6F Part I, II, III

Evidence Based - 
Quanitative Data

"Evaluate & 
Report"

Strategic Plan Summary Yoana, Omar

Summarize in 1-2 slides 
the impact of the Strategic 
Plan and any lessons 
learned. 

Due by Oct meeting 2024. Omar and others will provide input for our 
feedback to be included in the joint meeting presentaiton. 

MZ Section 
4A6F Part III

Evidence Based - 
Quanitative and 
Qualitiative Data

"Report & 
Recommend"

Attachment 11a

77 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://www.securitysales.com/video/why_the_asap_program_is_important_for_the_security_industry/


MZ Lessons Learned

Omar & Yoana; but all current 
and previous commissioners 
are involved

Staff reach out to previous 
commissioners for input. 
Create a survey for them.

Waiting to hear back from staff on contact info for previous 
commissioners. Omar emailed 9 former commissioners. Need staff to 
contact the rest. 1 former Chairperson will join us on 4/22. 2 others have 
replied and are considering providing input. At least 1 of those 2 will. 
Former Chairperson attended 4/22 meeting. May receive feedback 
from others. Staff stil working on following up with previous 
commisisoners. Input to be inlcuded in joint meeting presentation. 
Also distribute survey to current commisisoners.

MZ Section 
4A6F

Part II, III, 
IV

Evidence Based - 
Qualitative data

"Evaluate, Inquire, 
Review, Report, 
Recommend"

Community Education 
Campaign

Omar & Yoana and/or non-
executive member 
commissioners

Historically the general 
public has not been aware 
of the SSOC. Educate 
them on its results over 
the last 10 years + about 
the new MZ.

Educate the public about the SSOC by using flyers for meetings and 
social media posts. Include a quick reference guide with our objectives, 
recommendations, and hyperlinks to info. Educate folks on the history of 
MZ. Or write joint article instead. (1) Have an offsite meeting? (2) 
Create a joint meeting press release either prior to or afterwards to 
announce final SSOC statistics and information and to anounce 
the end of the SSOC. (3) Potentially create another press release in 
November to re-iterate our support for the MZ replacement. (4) 
Potentially discuss a press release to discuss approved, in 
progress, or proposed recommendations. 

MZ Section 1 
4A5 & 4A6F. 
Recommended 
for new MZ. Part III

Respect & 
Courtesy, 
Teamwork "Report"

MACRO Development Paula, Yoana, Omar

Improves 911 response 
times by having calls 
diverted from 911 to 
MACRO. 

See sheet 3 for details. Need to coodinate scheduling MACRO to come 
to SSOC meetings. Get an update on the # and if mtg's are public now. 
Part IV, I, III. Vote on 4/22 whether to recommend creating a Brown Act 
governed city commisison to oversee MACRO. MACRO ad hoc has a 
plan to reach out to 3 CMs to sponsor if approved. CAO office will also 
assist with outreach to City Council. CM Fife declined but stated she 
woud support it. Discussing with CM Reid ideally before May 20th 
meeting. CM Kaplan also interested in hearing more. May propose 
a co-sponsorship depending on our future discussions. Objective I, III Part II

Evidence Based - 
Quanitative Data

"Evaluate, Inquire, 
Review, Report, 
Recommend"

Strategic Plan Objectives for 
2024 Omar, Yoana

Summarize which 
objectives we'd like to 
have presentations for in 
2024. 

1.1 Annual fiscal and performance audits. 1.3 Review OPD Hiring Plan. 
1.4 Annual Report of SVS. 2.1 Annual Ceasefire Report. 2.2-2.3 Annual 
CRO & CRT Reports. 2.5 Annual Update Diversity of MZ Positions. 2.6 
OFD Annual Report on Call Center. 2.4 Tracking Recommendations 
from Evaluations. 2.4 is in progress. The info will be presented at the 
joint meeting. Having a Ceasefire presentaiton on 5/20. Also created 
a re-implementation of Ceasefire tracking report that Pastor 
Wallace and others will assist with. Faith in Action reps have been 
invited to 5/20 meeting. Received a 1.3 & 2.5 presentation in Feb or 
Mar but was not the report they typically make to the PSC which is 
what the task involves. 1.4, 2.2 and 2.3 can be incorportaed into 
joint meeting presentation like we did in 2023. Need to request 2.6. 
OFD was requested to attend the April and May meetings but 
declined and/or didn't respond to the request. Initiate 3.2 for 
creating a joint meeting presenter ad hoc. Also vote on having non 
Chair & Vice-Chair presenters at 5/20 meeting. 

Objectives I, II, 
III, IV

Objectives 
I, II, III, IV

Evidence Based - 
Quanitative and 
Qualitiative Data

"Evaluate & 
Review"

Public Safety Officer position Omar

Slow 911 response times. 
Have applicants attend 
both fire and police 
academies to create a 
new role.

Increases the number of folks who can respond to both medical/fire + 
law enforcement issues by increasing officer capabilities. Helps shift 
from a warrior to a guardian mindset. Incorporate into joint meeting 
recommendations slide or the SPOC 4-year violence reduction 
plan recommendation. Objective I Part II

Cross Training OFD call center 
w/ 911 call center Omar

911 call center is out of 
CAL OES standards for 
call answering times. 

Research cross training OFD center folks to augment 911 center staff. 
Incorporate into joint meeting recommendations slide or the SPOC 
4-year violence reduction plan recommendation. Objective I Part II

Self-triage 911 Omar

A way of reducing 911 
hold times. Mentioned at 
joint mtg.

Gathering info and intend to circle back to this rec ASAP. The idea is to 
be able to press 1 for OPD, 2 for OFD, 3 for MACRO. Incorporate into 
joint meeting recommendations slide or the SPOC 4-year violence 
reduction plan recommendation. Potentially discuss at July PSC 
meeting or with CM Kaplan's office prior to. Objective II

78 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Meeting Agenda 2024

FEBRUARY:  Roll Call (3), Open Forum (10), Approval of Minutes (2), Knightscope Technology - Mark (30), MACRO - Omar (30), CARE - Gloria (10), Verified Response - Omar 
(10), ASAP to PSAP - Omar (10), SSOC Dashboard - Omar (15), RPSTF - Yoana, Omar (15), Mtg Calendar (5), Report From Staff (5), New Business (5) / 2:30

MARCH:  MZ Draft (30), Urban Strategies? (30), CARE (15), Prior SSOC Commissioners (30), ASAP to PSAP (15) / 2 hrs

APRIL:  MACRO (30), Objective 1.1 (20), CARE (10), Prior SSOC Commissioners (30), Quarterly Financial Report (30) / 2 hrs

MAY: Ceasefire, DVP Dashboard, CARE Survey, CARE LWVO, MACRO ad hoc, Press Release - Endorsement, SSOC Dashboard, Joint Meeting Prep, Staff & Remote Access 
update

JUNE:  Quarterly Financial Report/s? (30), MACRO Ordinance update (10), Joint Meeting Presentation (draft) (30), CARE (5), SSOC Dashboard - Initiatives (10), Farewell Gloria 
Bailey-Ray (10), Discuss all requests not yet answered and any new staff or departmental requests (20), CARE Survey results (15) / 2:30 hrs (Vice-Chair absent)

Proposals: State of 911 Call Center? (30), State of OFD Call Center? - Objective 2.6 (30), OPD Chief Q&A (30), OPD Hiring Report that's presented to PSC (30), Ceasefire 
Tracker (15), OPD Objective/s 1.4 (SVS), 2.2 (CRO), 2.3 (CRT/OPS 1-3)

JULY:  Quarterly Financial Report/s? (30), Joint Meeting Presentation (draft) (30), SSOC Dashboard - Initiatives & ASAP to PSAP (15), MACRO Ordinance update (10), CARE 
Survey Results (15) / 1:40

Proposals: State of 911 Call Center? (30), State of OFD Call Center? - Objective 2.6 (30), OPD Chief Q&A (30), OPD Hiring Report that's presented to PSC (30), Ceasefire 
Tracker (15), OPD Objective/s 1.4 (SVS), 2.2 (CRO), 2.3 (CRT/OPS 1-3), Discuss all requests not yet answered and any new staff or departmental requests (20)

AUGUST:  Quarterly Financial Report/s? (30), Joint Meeting Presentation (draft) (30), SSOC Dashboard - Initiatives & ASAP to PSAP (15), MACRO Ordinance update (10), DVP 
Dashboard final? (15), Urban Strategies Eval Results? (30), LWVO results? (15), CARE Survey Results (15) / 2:40

Proposals: Discuss Potential New Press Release/s (15), Proposals: State of 911 Call Center? (30), State of OFD Call Center? - Objective 2.6 (30), OPD Chief Q&A (30), OPD 
Hiring Report that's presented to PSC (30), OPD Objective/s 1.4 (SVS), 2.2 (CRO), 2.3 (CRT/OPS 1-3), Discuss all requests not yet answered and any new staff or departmental 
requests (20), Have meeting offsite?

SEPTEMBER:  Practice Presenting & Finalize Joint Meeting Presentation (30), SSOC Dashboard - Initiatives (15), MACRO Ordinance update (10), DVP Dashboard final? (15) - 
Urban Strategies Eval results? (30), LWVO results? (15) / 1:55

Proposals: Discuss New Press Release/s for Joint Meeting &/or 911 Improvements (15), Have meeting offsite? 

OCTOBER:  Conduct Joint Meeting?  (Recess regualr monthly meeting if joint meeting is conducted this month)

Proposals: Discuss New Press Release/s for Joint Meeting &/or 911 Improvements (15)

Attachment 11b

79 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



NOVEMBER:  Conduct Joint Meeting?  (Recess regualr monthly meeting if joint meeting is conducted this month)

DECEMBER:  Joint Meeting Debrief (15), Discuss new MZ Election Results (15), Initiative & Recommendation Summary (10), Thank You's & Farewell (20). Have meeting offsite 
with food? 

80 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Date: 13 May 2024

To: SSOC Commission
From: Omar Farmer, Chairperson
Cc: Felicia Verdin - Staff Lead; Yoana Tchoukleva - Vice-Chair

Subject: Joint Meeting Presentation Preparation

Colleagues, the purpose of this letter is to follow up on our April 22nd discussion regarding initiating the
creation of the 2024 joint meeting presentation ad hoc committee. As discussed, we propose having the three
newest members conduct the presentation. The presentation is typically in November but has been held in
October in the past. No date has been set yet but preparations are still needed. Moving forward, a motion will
need to be made, and an ad hoc committee created in order to move forward as planned.

Over the next three months, progress regarding showing a presentation in the form of PowerPoint slides, notes
from ad hoc committee meetings, or other questions to the rest of the commission will be on the agenda for
discussion during our June 24th, July 22nd, and August 26th monthly meetings. That input must be submitted
to the Executive Team and staff by no later than June 12th, July 10th, and August 14th respectively, in order to
be able to include them in our agenda packages.

At our September 23rd meeting, we will review and finalize your presentation. Submit those presentation
documents by no later than September 11th. Also be prepared to make your presentation to the entire
commission from the guest presenter podium on the dias and keep the timeframe of your presentation to 20
minutes.

Enclosed in this month’s agenda are the presentations from the past three years to assist in getting you
started. Other references are listed on page 2 below. Moreover, the CARE spreadsheet in this month’s agenda
includes a link to the CARE presentation. The entire SSOC dashboard can also be shared with you upon
request. Historically, joint meeting presentations have included the following types of information:

1. Overview & Purpose of SSOC. Our members.
2. Statistics Shared by DVP/OPD/OFD,
3. Financial Results
4. Evaluation Analysis
5. Work Completed within the past year.
6. Approved or Proposed Recommendations
7. Lessons Learned or Feedback
8. Anything else you’d like to add.

One to four slides per topic should keep you within the anticipated timeframe for the presentation. Since no
more than four commissioners are allowed to participate in an ad hoc committee at any given time, if you want

1

Attachment 12a

81 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



to discuss your presentation with another commission, to avoid having a potential serial meeting Brown Act
violation you may only have a discussion with no more than one additional commissioner per month. Please
plan accordingly and feel free to ask additional commissioners questions at our monthly meetings.

Respectfully,
Omar Farmer

References:
● Strategic Plan Objective 3.2 - Create an SSOC annual report that includes work on Strategic
● Plan objectives and present it at the joint meeting
● SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2204
● 2021 Efficacy of Measure Z Joint Meeting Presentation
● 2023 Joint Meeting Presentation
● CARE Presentation & Feedback
● SSOC Dashboard

2
82 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Attachment 12b 

CITY OF OAKLAND PUBLIC SAFETY AND SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMISSION 

Overview on Measure Z 
December 2021 

01.

83 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



84 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



85 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



86 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



87 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



88 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



89 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



90 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



91 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



92 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



93 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



94 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



95 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



96 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



97 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



98 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



99 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



100 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



101 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



102 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



103 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



104 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



105 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



106 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



107 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



108 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



SSOC CITY OF OAKLAND PUBLIC SAFETY AND SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMISSION

Public Safety and Services Oversight Commission (SSOC)

November 29, 2022
Report to Joint Meeting of the

Oakland City Council, Department of Violence Prevention, Police Commission 
and the Community Policing Advisory Board

A t t a c h m e n t  1 2 c

109 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



CITY OF OAKLAND PUBLIC SAFETY AND SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMISSION

SSOC

1) Evaluate, inquire & review the administration, coordination and evaluation of strategies and
practices mandated in this Ordinance

2) Make recommendations to City Administrator regarding scope of program evaluation

3) Receive draft performance reviews before evaluator finalizes the report

4) Report issues identified in the annual fiscal audit to the Mayor & City Council

5) Review annual fiscal and performance audits & evaluations

Measure Z Mandated Duties of Commission

110 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



CITY OF OAKLAND PUBLIC SAFETY AND SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMISSION

SSOC

6) Report in a public meeting to the Mayor & City Council on the implementation of MZ and
recommend ordinances, etc., to ensure compliance with the requirements of MZ

7) Provide input on strategies: at least every 3 years each head of a department receiving funds
from MZ shall present a spending plan for the funds received from MZ

8) Semi-annual progress reports shall be received by Commission from the departments receiving
funds updating their progress toward desired outcomes.

Measure Z Mandated Duties of Commission

111 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



CITY OF OAKLAND PUBLIC SAFETY AND SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMISSION

SSOC

• SSOC has received & reviewed reports from OFD, OPD, Ceasefire and the DVP

• SSOC was informed of the Crime Reduction Teams (CRTs) being absorbed into the new Violent
Crimes Operation Center after the fact

• SSOC was informed of the reorganization of DVP after the fact

Duty #1: Evaluate, inquire & review the administration, coordination and evaluation of 
strategies and practices mandated in this Ordinance

Nov 2021 – Nov 2022 Completed Tasks

112 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



CITY OF OAKLAND PUBLIC SAFETY AND SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMISSION

SSOC

Commissioner Beth Hodess represented SSOC on the RFP Panel for DVP evaluation

Duty #2: Make recommendations to City Administrator regarding scope of program 
evaluation

Duty #3: Receive draft performance reviews before evaluator finalizes the report

Duty #4: Report issues identified in the annual fiscal audit to the Mayor & City Council

Not available for this year

No issues have been identified

113 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



CITY OF OAKLAND PUBLIC SAFETY AND SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMISSION

SSOC

Reviewed reports from the OFD, OPD and DVP

Duty #5: Review annual fiscal and performance audits & evaluations

Duty #6: Report in a public meeting to the Mayor & City Council on the implementation of 
MZ and recommend ordinances etc to ensure compliance with the requirements of MZ 

Commissioner Omar Farmer is working on a proposal regarding fire alarm response

114 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



CITY OF OAKLAND PUBLIC SAFETY AND SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMISSION

SSOC

• OFD does not account for MZ funds separately
• SSOC reviewed DVP spending plan and is awaiting OPD Spending Plan

Duty #7: Provide input on strategies: at least every 3 years each head of a department 
receiving funds from MZ shall present a spending plan for the funds received from MZ

115 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



CITY OF OAKLAND PUBLIC SAFETY AND SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMISSION

SSOC

• Evaluations of DVP programs, Ceasefire and OPD’s Community Policing are done by outside
experts and reported to the SSOC when available.

• No evaluations were done in 2022.

Duty #8: Semi-annual progress reports shall be received by Commission from the 
departments receiving funds updating their progress toward desired outcomes.

116 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



CITY OF OAKLAND PUBLIC SAFETY AND SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMISSION

SSOC

SSOC had a quorum for each meeting of the year. One new member was appointed to the 
Commission, one was re-appointed and one resigned. Evaluated as an oversight body of 
“medium strength” by the League of Women Voters, the SSOC recently adopted a 
strategic plan that will make its work more directed, structured and effective. 

Concluding Remarks 

117 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



CITY OF OAKLAND PUBLIC SAFETY AND SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMISSION

SSOC

SSOC Strategic Plan: 2022-2024 

IMAGE CREDIT: OAKLAND SUPERHEROES MURAL, MARKET ST AND 580
118 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



CITY OF OAKLAND PUBLIC SAFETY AND SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMISSION

SSOC

SSOC Strategic Plan: Background

Purpose of SSOC is to oversee revenue spending by and evaluate the strategies of the 
Oakland Police Department, Oakland Fire Department and the Department of Violence 
Prevention, the three city departments tasked fulfilling the goals of Measure Z: 

• Reduce homicides, robberies, burglaries, and gun-related violence
• Improve police and fire emergency 911 response times and other police services
• Invest in violence intervention and prevention strategies that provide support for at-

risk youth and young adults to interrupt the cycle of violence and recidivism

119 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



CITY OF OAKLAND PUBLIC SAFETY AND SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMISSION

SSOC

SSOC Strategic Plan: Mission

To ensure that the Public Safety and 
Services Violence Prevention 

Oversight Commission (“SSOC”) 
fulfills its duties under Measure Z 

in an effective and strategic manner, 
resulting in improved public safety, 

a more informed community, 
and a healthier quality of life for all 

Oakland residents. 

120 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



SSOC

Part 1: Financial Accountability & Transparency
Stemming from the duties to: "Review fiscal and performance audits and evaluations”, “report issues 
identified”, refine or create methods for evaluating how MZ funds are spent on programs mandated 
by the Ordinance. MZ Part I, Section 4(A)(6)(d)-(e) [14]

Objective 1.1: Analyze the city auditor's report of each department's funds. The tax proceeds raised 
through MZ are only allowed to pay for costs or expenses related to efforts to achieve the three 
primary objectives of the Ordinance. [16]

Objective 1.2: Once each fiscal year, before the city adopts its 2-year policy budget or its mid-cycle 
budget adjustments, determine whether the police personnel hiring plan effectively demonstrates 
how the City will achieve or maintain the strength of force required by the Ordinance or whether 
the SSOC feels the City should be prohibited from collecting the taxes provided in the Ordinance at 
any time OPD falls below 678 sworn police personnel, and determine whether the prohibitions in 
Section 3(C)(2)(e) of MZ should apply to the fiscal year of that budget. [17]

121 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



SSOC

Part 1: Financial Accountability & Transparency

Objective 1.3: Receive an annual report from DVP about which areas the department needs more 
funding for so that it can fulfill its duties under Measure Z.

Objective 1.4: Receive an annual report concerning expenditures to combat the commercial sexual 
exploitation of children from OPD's Special Victims Section ("SVS").

Objective 1.5: Receive an annual report from DVP on: (1) the estimated number of residents who 
are victims of Gender-Based Violence ("GBV"); (2) out of the 4,200 estimated residents DVP has 
planned to serve each year, what percentage are victims of commercial sexual exploitation, intimate 
partner violence and sexual violence; and (3) how much is being spent per person.

122 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



SSOC

Part 2: Evaluation of Violence Reduction Measures
Stemming from the duties to: “Evaluate, inquire & review the administration, coordination and 
evaluation of strategies and practices mandated in this Ordinance” and "recommend to the Mayor 
and City Council whether specific strategies should be continued or terminated based on successes 
in reducing or preventing violent crime." MZ Part I, Section 4(A)(6)(a),(g) [18] [11]

Objective 2.1: Receive a detailed annual Ceasefire analysis that illustrates to the public whether 
Ceasefire has been an effective violence reduction measure. [39]

Objective 2.2: Receive an annual update concerning the quality, quantity, and beat location of 
Community Resource Officer (“CRO”) SARAnet-based projects that are in progress or completed and 
request for the department to create a metric to determine how each project supports MZ goals. 
[21, 32, 35, 37] 

Objective 2.3: Request that a metric for OPS 1-3 personnel (aka CRTs) be created that will assist the 
SSOC in evaluating the OPS crime reduction efforts. [19, 36]

123 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



SSOC

Part 2: Evaluation of Violence Reduction Measures

Objective 2.4: Create a document that tracks all recommendations from Evaluations. This will help 
us gain a deeper understanding of the timeline for implementation and effectiveness of each 
recommendation.

Objective 2.5: Receive updates concerning staffing for CROs, OPS 1-3 personnel, Ceasefire Officers, 
and SVS personnel who are under MZ-funded positions, as well as plans for improved diversity and 
recruitment within these ranks. [28, 31, 38]

Objective 2.6: Receive a report on success markers for OFD in relation to the three primary 
objectives of MZ,  including analysis from Dudek regarding OFD 911 response times. [18, 40] 

124 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



SSOC

Part 3: Community Outreach & Engagement
Stemming from the duty to: “Conduct public informational meetings on the subject of public safety.” 
MZ ______[cite]

Objective 3.1: Consider creating a community engagement committee to discuss the efficacy of MZ 
with NCPCs, CBOs, and other community members. 

Within the committee: (1) share all the areas MZ funds are spent on, (2) create recommendations 
for the future of MZ, (3) discuss with the public whether or how CROS and OPS 1-3 personnel have 
helped build community trust and reduced violent crime; (4) receive feedback from the community. 
[22, 24, 25, 33, 34]

Objective 3.2: Create an annual report to present to the Joint City Council Meeting, informing City 
Council and the public of the SSOC's progress on key Strategic Plan objectives.

125 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



SSOC

Part 4: Policies and Practices to Improve MZ Outcomes

Stemming from the duty to: “Recommend ordinances, resolutions, and regulations to ensure 
compliance with the requirements and intent of the Ordinance.” MZ Part I, Section 4(A)(6)(f)

Objective 4.1: Receive a detailed annual Ceasefire analysis that illustrates to the public whether 
Ceasefire has been an effective violence reduction measure. [39]

Objective 4.2: Consider drafting ordinances, resolutions, or regulations that support the three 
primary objectives of MZ (e.g., policies created to increase investments in Restorative Justice as a 
violence reduction measure, or policies designed to increase CRO activities). [13]

126 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



SSOC

SSOC Strategic Plan: Implementation

The bulk of the Strategic Plan is designed to be implemented 
through reports presented at the monthly meetings of the 
SSOC. Some of the objectives of the Plan will be realized 
through the creation of ad-hoc committees. 

The 14 objectives can be completed in a single year or spread 
out over two years. 

The plan is intended to be flexible. The SSOC can vote to 
modify, add or remove objectives based on new or evolving 
circumstances. 

IMAGE CREDIT: FAVIANNA RODRIGUEZ
127 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



SSOC

SSOC Strategic Plan: References
1. MZ page 1, paragraphs 2 and 5, and page 2, Part 1, Section 1B
2. MZ Section 4A, page 7
3. MZ page 1 paragraph 6
4. MZ page 2 Part 1 Section 1(A)
5. MZ Section 4(A)6(a) page 8
6. MZ Section 4(A)6(b), page 8
7. SSOC 4/25/22 Meeting Items 7 and 10
8. Strategic Planning for Public & Nonprofit Organizations: A Guide to Strengthening & Sustaining Organizational Achievement (3rd edition), page 6
9. Oakland Board & Commission Member Handbook “Collaborating with the public” page 10
10. MZ section 4 “Planning, Accountability And Evaluation” page 7
11. MZ section 4A6(a)(b), page 8
12. Efficacy of MZ presentation 12/7/21
13. MZ section 4A6F, page 9
14. MZ section 4 “Planning, Accountability And Evaluation”  page 7
15. MZ Part II, Section 4(B), page 14, and Section 5, page 15
16. MZ Part I, Section 3(A), page 3
17. MZ Part I, Section 3(C)2(c)(d), pages 4-5
18. MZ section 4A6(a)(b), page 8
19. SSOC 6/27/22 Meeting Items 6 and 7
20. MZ section 4A6F, pg 9

128 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



SSOC

SSOC Strategic Plan: References (cont.)
21. OPD 2020 Evaluation, page 2 paragraph 4, and last line on page
22. OPD 2020 Evaluation, page 3 2nd bullet item
23. OPD 2020 Evaluation, page 4, paragraph 1
24. OPD 2020 Evaluation, page 6, paragraphs 1 and 2
25. OPD 2020 Evaluation, page 6, paragraph 3
26. SSOC By-Laws, Article IX, page 7
27. Robert's Rules 11th Edition, page 328
28. OPD 2020 Evaluation, pages 10-12
29. OPD 2020 Evaluation Recommendation 2, page 25
30. OPD 2020 Evaluation Recommendation 3, page 26
31. OPD 2020 Evaluation Recommendation 4, page 26
32. OPD 2020 Evaluation Recommendation 5, page 26
33. OPD 2020 Evaluation Recommendation 6, page 27
34. OPD 2020 Evaluation Recommendation 7, page 27
35. OPD 2018 Evaluation Finding #2, page 42
36. OPD 2018 Evaluation Finding #13 page 46
37. OPD 2018 Evaluation Recommendation #4, page 48
38. OPD 2019 Evaluation Recommendation #6, page 29
39. Ceasefire Evaluation 2018, page 100
40. SSOC 6/27/22 Meeting Item 7
41. Oakland Board & Commission Member Handbook "Expressions of Personal Opinion" page 9

129 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Strategic
Plan 

SSOC 

DEC 2022 - DEC 2024

APPROVED

Date: 10/24/22

Attachment 12d

130 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Mission

2
Introduction

1

Vision

5

Overview

3

Values

6

Purpose

4

Goals

7

Table of Contents

Parts I, II, III, & IV

8

Implementation 

9

References 

10

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 1131 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Introduction

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 2

Reduce homicides, robberies, burglaries, and gun-related violence

In 2021, the SSOC presented at our joint public safety meeting a presentation
entitled "The Efficacy of Measure Z". The presentation built upon several
annual evaluations.

Similarly, this Strategic Plan builds upon prior evaluations and goals of the
Ordinance. It aims to present a pathway for how the SSOC can better further
the goals of Measure Z ("MZ") to:

1.

2. Improve police and fire emergency 911 response times
and other police services

3. Invest in violence intervention and prevention strategies
that provide support for at-risk youth and young adults
to interrupt the cycle of violence and recidivism [12, 20]

132 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Mission

To ensure that the Public Safety and Services
Violence Prevention Oversight Commission (“SSOC”)
fulfills its duties under Measure Z in an effective and
strategic manner, resulting in improved public
safety, a more informed community, and a healthier
quality of life for all Oakland residents. [1]

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 3
133 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Overview

(1) assisting us with adapting to pre-existing, new, or evolving circumstances;
(2) by highlighting where we've been, where we are now, where we want to be,
and how we’re going to get there 

Through a coordinated effort in 2004 known as “Oakland Unite”, voters approved
funding via Measure Y to augment essential police and fire services and to create
violence prevention and intervention programs. When Measure Y expired in 2014,
voters approved another measure, similar in scope, entitled the Public Safety and
Services Violence Prevention Act, also known as Measure Z.  It expires in 2024. [2]

MZ created the SSOC to oversee revenue spending by departments that receive
funding and implement programs under the Ordinance: Oakland Police
Department (“OPD”), Oakland Fire Department (“OFD”), and the Department of
Violence Prevention (“DVP”). DVP wasn’t fully established until 2017 so it’s still in its
early stages of development compared to the other departments.

More specifically, the SSOC is tasked with evaluating, inquiring, and reviewing the
administration and coordination of strategies and practices mandated by the
Ordinance.

In 2019, many of the aforementioned reasons for implementing both measures
were exacerbated by the development of the COVID-19 pandemic, which still
exists today. The pandemic has taken additional emotional and financial tolls on
our public safety resources and the community at large. It also prevented
requirements mandated through MZ from being completed, such as complete data
collection for evaluations. [23] 

This Strategic Plan will help us carry out our duties by: 

The scope of any recommendations made by us 
to the City Administration, City Council, or appropriate personnel, shall relate
directly to the efficacy of strategies to achieve desired MZ outcomes, or to issues
raised in evaluations. [3, 4, 5, 6] 

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 4
 

134 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/violence-prevention


Purpose

On April 25, 2022, the SSOC unanimously approved the creation of a
Strategic Planning Ad Hoc Committee. [7] 

While not a requirement, the SSOC has never had a strategic plan despite
the fact that strategic planning is one of the fundamental duties of any
commission. Strategic planning is a disciplined effort to produce decisions
and actions that shape and guide what an organization is, what it does, and
why it does it. [8]

The specific purpose of the ad hoc was to create a strategic plan for the
commission to adopt as a whole. The ad hoc convened bi-monthly from
May 10th to September 14th. 

Having a strategic plan will help the SSOC better serve the community
through current and future challenges.

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 5
135 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Vision

A flexible and adaptive Strategic Plan will assist the SSOC in establishing
priorities and a roadmap for achieving its goals over the next two years or
beyond.

The plan is not intended to be prescriptive: the objectives outlined in the plan
are presented for consideration, not automatic implementation. The plan
should also be able to adapt to new or evolving circumstances, such as
municipal, state, regional, or national issues.

Most of the plan is designed to be planned and executed through reports
presented during the monthly meetings of the Commission. This can happen
through long and short-term agenda planning. Some of the items may need
to be planned and initiated through ad hoc committees or outreach to the
public, then reported on during monthly meetings.

It's also reasonable to expect some trial and error. A status report on the plan
should be conducted at a minimum annually. The plan has been memorialized
in writing so we can refer to it regularly and track our progress.

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 6
136 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Values

RESPECT & COURTESY create space for honest conversations, which
fosters greater participation and rewards us with perspectives we may
not have otherwise considered. [9]

EVIDENCE-BASED DECISION MAKING requires us to consider
quantitative and qualitative data before making decisions.  [41] 

IMPACT-ORIENTATION allows us to develop goals that build trust and
confidence with the public and offer us the opportunity to be more
effective.

TEAMWORK can be directly linked to increased productivity because it
inspires us to work together toward a common goal.

Below are four core values that reflect this plan's intent and spirit. We hope
these values will guide us in carrying out our duties and improving MZ
outcomes.

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 7
137 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Evaluation of Violence Reduction Measures  

Stemming from the Duty of the Commission to: 
"Evaluate, inquire, and review the administration, coordination, and evaluation
of strategies and practices mandated by MZ." MZ Part I, Section 4A6a [18] [11]

Part 2

 
Financial Accountability & Transparency

Stemming from the Duty of the Commission to:
"Review fiscal and performance audits and evaluations” and “report issues
identified”, refine or create methods for clearly evaluating how MZ funds are
spent on programs mandated by the Ordinance. 
MZ Part I, Section 4A6(d)-(e) [14]

Part 1

Goals:  Parts I, II, III, & IV

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 8

Part 3

Stemming from the Duty of the Commission to: 
"Conduct public informational meetings on the subject of public safety” and
establish a structured way to consistently reach out to the public and discuss
the efficacy of MZ. [MZ Part I, Section 4A5 & 4A6(f)] [12] 

 
Community Outreach & Engagement

Part 4
Policies & Practices to Improve MZ Outcomes

Stemming from the Duty of the Commission to: 
"Recommend ordinances, resolutions, & regulations to ensure compliance with
the requirements and intent of the Ordinance." MZ Part I, Section 4A6(f) [13]

138 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Part I: Financial Accountability & Transparency

Stemming from the Duties of the Commission to: 
"Review fiscal and performance audits and evaluations” and “report issues
identified”, refine or create methods for clearly evaluating how MZ funds are
spent on programs mandated by the Ordinance.

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 9

OBJECTIVE  1.1

Receive an annual report from the Special Victims Section (aka SVS) on
geographic policing resources used to combat domestic violence, child
abuse and the commercial sexual exploitation of children.

OBJECTIVE 1.2

Receive an annual report from DVP on: (1) the estimated number of residents
who are victims of Gender-Based Violence ("GBV"); (2) out of the 4,200
estimated residents DVP will be able to serve per year, what percentage are
victims of commercial sexual exploitation, intimate partner violence, and
sexual violence; and (3) how much is being spent per person per category.

OBJECTIVE 1.3

Receive a report from OPD on their ability to maintain sufficient resources
to accomplish MZ geographic policing goals.

OBJECTIVE 1.4

Receive a report on issues identified in annual fiscal and performance
audits that effect MZ resources.

139 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Part II:  Evaluation of Violence Reduction Measures

Stemming from the Duty of the Commission to: 
"Evaluate, inquire, and review the administration, coordination, and
evaluation of strategies and practices mandated by MZ." 

OBJECTIVE  2.1
Receive an annual Ceasefire MZ specific report that illustrates to the public
the effectiveness of this violence reduction measure.  [39]

OBJECTIVE  2.2
Receive an annual report on the percentage of time CRO's have spent
conducting geographical policing activities, and request a metric to be
created that measures how their work supports MZ goals or work with them to
create one. [21, 32, 35, 37]    

OBJECTIVE  2.3

Receive an annual report on the percentage of time OPS 1-3 personnel (aka
CRTs) have spent conducting geographical policing activities, and request a
metric to be created that measures how their work supports MZ goals or work
with them to create one. [19, 36]

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 10

OBJECTIVE  2.4

Create a document that tracks all recommendations from Evaluations. This
will help us gain a deeper understanding of the timeline for implementation
on each recommendation and whether they are ultimately successful.

OBJECTIVE  2.5
Receive an annual update concerning diversity, recruitment and retention for
MZ-funded positions. [28, 31, 38]

                                                   OBJECTIVE 2.6
Receive a report on success markers for OFD in relation to the three
primary objectives of MZ,  including analysis from OFD & OPD concerning
their 911 response times. [18, 40]  

140 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://cao-94612.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/SSOC-Agenda-and-Materials-7-25-22.pdf


Part III: Community Outreach & Engagement  

OBJECTIVE  3.1

Consider creating a community engagement committee to discuss the
efficacy of MZ with members of the public that may benefit from this
information. 

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 11

Stemming from the Duty of the Commission to: 
"Conduct public informational meetings on the subject of public safety”
and establish a structured way to consistently reach out to the public and
discuss the efficacy of MZ.

OBJECTIVE  3.2

Create an SSOC annual report that includes work on Strategic Plan
objectives, and present it at the joint meeting. 

Part IV:  Policies & Practices to Improve MZ Outcomes 
                
  

Stemming from the Duty of the Commission to: 
Recommend ordinances, resolutions, & regulations to ensure compliance
with the requirements and intent of the Ordinance."

Consider recommending Ordinances, Resolutions, or Regulations that
support the three primary objectives of MZ. [13]

OBJECTIVE  4.1

141 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



OBJECTIVE  4.5

OBJECTIVE  4.6

OBJECTIVE  4.4

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 12

Objective Summary

1.1  Receive a report on issues identified in annual fiscal and performance
audits that effect MZ resources.

1.2  Receive an annual report from DVP on GBV expenditures.

1.3  Receive a report from OPD on their ability to maintain sufficient
resources to accomplish geographic policing goals.

1.4 Receive an annual report from the Special Victims Section on
geographic policing.

2.1  Receive an annual Ceasefire MZ specific report. 

2.2  Receive and annual CRO MZ specific report.

2.3  Receive and annual OPS 1-3 MZ specific report

2.4  Create a document that tracks all recommendations from Evaluations.

2.5  Receive an annual update concerning diversity, recruitment and
retention for MZ-funded positions. 

2.6  Receive a report on success markers for OFD + analysis of 911 times.

3.1 Create a community engagement plan.

3.2  Create an SSOC annual report and present it at the joint meeting.

4.1  Consider recommending Ordinances, Resolutions, or Regulations.

142 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://cao-94612.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/SSOC-Agenda-and-Materials-7-25-22.pdf


OBJECTIVE  4.5

OBJECTIVE  4.6

OBJECTIVE  4.4

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 13

Implementation

9 are reports we'll receive from other departments

2 involve new committees

2 involve policies or metrics we give ourselves the option of creating

The Strategic Plan has 13 total objectives that were designed to be
implemented over the course of eleven to twelve months, predominantly
through long and short-term agenda planning. 

Alternatively, since starting in December there will be twenty-four months
until the expiration of MZ, we have the flexibility to create new objectives
or to spread out the implementation of these over the course of 18-24
months. Below is a breakdown of how each is designed to be initiated:

All are designed to consistently track the efficacy of the ordinance, to
educate the public, and to give ourselves the option of having more tools  
 to deliver better outcomes. 

143 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



OBJECTIVE  4.5

OBJECTIVE  4.6

OBJECTIVE  4.4

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 14

Creating Objectives

The following scoring system will help guide us in creating or changing
Strategic Plan objectives. The intent is to have a diverse set of objectives that
cover the span of MZ goals.

Oversight actions described by the Ordinance for the SSOC to take, such as
"evaluate, inquire, review, report, and recommend", can be used as starting
points for creating or initiating new objectives.

A racial equity section is included to foster equitable outcomes. This will assist
us in serving the population we represent.

 
 

1)   Financial Accountability & Transparency                                                1 point
2)   Emergency Response Times                                                                     1 point
3)   Geographic Policing                                                                                    1 point
4)    Violence Prevention & Intervention                                                        1 point
5)    Community Outreach & Engagement                                                    1 point
6)    Policy Recommendation                                                                           1 point
7)    Maintenance of Sworn Personnel                                                           1 point 
8)    Fire Services Delivery or Training                                                            1 point
9)    Practice Recommendation                                                                       1 point

       Racial Equity
10)  Improves access to public safety services                                             1 point
11)  Addresses systemic &  institutional racism                                           1 point
12)  Empowers disproportionately affected populations                           1 point
                                                                                                     

144 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



OBJECTIVE  4.5

OBJECTIVE  4.6

OBJECTIVE  4.4

TIER 1:  3.1 Create a
community engagement
plan. [1, 3, 4, 5, 12 = 5 pts]

TIER 1:  2.1 Receive a
detailed annual
Ceasefire report.
[3, 4, 5, 12 = 4 pts]

TIER 1:  2.2 Receive and
annual CRO MZ specific
report.  [3, 4, 9, 10 = 4 pts]

TIER 1:  4.1 Consider
recommending
Ordinances, Resolutions, or
Regulations.
[2, 4, 9, 6, 10, 12 = 6 pts]

TIER 2:  2.6 Receive a
report on success markers
for OFD + analysis of 911
times. [2, 4, 8 = 3 pts]

TIER 2:  2.3 Receive and
annual OPS 1-3 MZ
specific report. 
[3, 4, 9 = 3 pts]

TIER 2:  2.5 Receive an
annual update concerning
diversity, recruitment and
retention for MZ-funded
positions. 
[3, 7, 11 = 3 pts]

TIER 2:  2.4 Create a
document that tracks all
recommendations from
Evaluations. 
[1, 3, 4 = 3 pts]

TIER 2:  1.3 Receive a
report from OPD on their
ability to maintain
sufficient resources to
accomplish MZ
geographic policing
goals.  [1, 6, 7 = 3 pts]

TIER 3:  1.1 Receive a
report on issues identified
in annual fiscal and
performance audits that
effect MZ resources.
[1, 4 = 2 pts]

TIER 3:  1.4  Receive an
annual report from SVS on
geographic policing. 
[1, 4 = 2 pts]

TIER 3:  1.2 Receive an
annual report from DVP
on GBV expenditures. 
[1, 4 = 2 pts]

TIER 3:  3.2 Create an
SSOC annual report and
present it at the joint
meeting.  [5, 6 = 2 pts] 

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 15

Objective Scoring

145 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://cao-94612.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/SSOC-Agenda-and-Materials-7-25-22.pdf


January 2023

3.1  Discuss creating a
community

engagement plan.

1.4  Receive an
annual report from
SVS on geographic

policing. 

1.3  Receive a report
on OPD's hiring or

retention practices
concerning how they
plan to achieve MZ
geographic policing

personnel goals.

Item 2?

1.2 Receive an
annual report from

DVP on GBV
expenditures.

 
 
 

Item 2?

 1st Quarter Agenda Example
February 2023

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 16

January 2023December 2022

 2nd Quarter Agenda Example
March 2023 April 2023 May 2023

2.1  Receive a detailed
annual Ceasefire report. 

2.2  Receive and
annual CRO MZ
specific report.

2.4 Create a
document that tracks
all recommendations

from Evaluations.

Item 2? 2.3  Receive and
annual OPS 1-3 MZ

specific report

Item 2?

146 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://cao-94612.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/SSOC-Agenda-and-Materials-7-25-22.pdf


 3rd Quarter Agenda Example

January 2023

Aug 2023 (retreat)July 2023June 2023

2.5 Receive an annual
update concerning

diversity and
recruitment for MZ-

funded positions.

2.6 Receive a
report on success
markers for OFD +

analysis of 911
times.

4.1 Discuss drafting or
recommending

Ordinances,
Resolutions, or
Regulations.  

 
 

Item 2?

1.1 Receive a report
on issues identified
in annual fiscal and

performance
audits that effect

MZ resources.

3.2 Create an annual
report that includes
the completion of

Strategic Plan
objectives, and

present it at the joint
meeting (start)

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 17

 4th Quarter Agenda Example

September 2023 October 2023 Nov or Dec 2023

3.2 Create an annual
report that includes
the completion of

Strategic Plan
objectives, and

present it at the joint
meeting  (finish)

Present objective 3.2
at Joint Meeting?

 
Present objective 3.2
at Joint Meeting?

147 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Your Nonprofit's Name
123 Anywhere St., Any City, 

ST 12345 Country
123-456-7890

www.reallygreatsite.com
hello@reallygreatsite.com

Thank you for listening!

Most impact reports conclude with a page
acknowledging the contributions of the people
who worked tirelessly on the projects mentioned
within. Below, list down the names of those
committed to these projects, such as:

Those responsible for concept and coordination

Your group of researchers 

The writers behind the impact report

The designers of the impact report

Your colleagues from Local and Partner
Organizations

Your contributors

Acknowledgements

 MZ page 1, paragraphs 2 and 5, and page 2, Part 1, Section 1B                                                       
References

1.
   2. MZ Section 4A, page 7
   3. MZ page 1 paragraph 6
   4. MZ page 2 Part 1 Section 1(A)
   5. MZ Section 4(A)6(a) page 8 
   6.  MZ Section 4(A)6(b), page 8
   7. SSOC 4/25/22 Meeting Items 7 and 10
   8. Strategic Planning for Public & Nonprofit Organizations: A Guide to Strengthening & Sustaining    
       Organizational Achievement (3rd edition), page 6
   9. Oakland Board & Commission Member Handbook “Collaborating with the public” page 10
  10. MZ section 4 “Planning, Accountability And Evaluation” page 7
  11. MZ section 4A6(a)(b), page 8
  12. Efficacy of MZ presentation 12/7/21
  13. MZ section 4A6F, page 9
  14.  MZ section 4 “Planning, Accountability And Evaluation”  page 7
  15. MZ Part II, Section 4(B), page 14, and Section 5, page 15 
  16. MZ Part I, Section 3(A), page 3
  17. MZ Part I, Section 3(C)2(c)(d), pages 4-5
  18. MZ section 4A6(a)(b), page 8
   19. SSOC 6/27/22 Meeting Items 6 and 7
   20. MZ section 4A6F, pg 9
   21. OPD 2020 Evaluation, page 2 paragraph 4, and last line on page
   22. OPD 2020 Evaluation, page 3 2nd bullet item
   23. OPD 2020 Evaluation, page 4, paragraph 1
   24. OPD 2020 Evaluation, page 6, paragraphs 1 and 2
   25. OPD 2020 Evaluation, page 6, paragraph 3
   26. SSOC By-Laws, Article IX, page 7
   27. Robert's Rules 11th Edition, page 328
   28. OPD 2020 Evaluation, pages 10-12
   29. OPD 2020 Evaluation Recommendation 2, page 25
   30. OPD 2020 Evaluation Recommendation 3, page 26
   31. OPD 2020 Evaluation Recommendation 4, page 26
   32. OPD 2020 Evaluation Recommendation 5, page 26
   33. OPD 2020 Evaluation Recommendation 6, page 27
   34. OPD 2020 Evaluation Recommendation 7, page 27
   35. OPD 2018 Evaluation Finding #2, page 42
   36. OPD 2018 Evaluation Finding #13 page 46
   37. OPD 2018 Evaluation Recommendation #4, page 48
   38. OPD 2019 Evaluation Recommendation #6, page 29
   39. Ceasefire Evaluation 2018, page 100 
   40. SSOC 6/27/22 Meeting Item 7
   41. Oakland Board & Commission Member Handbook "Expressions of Personal Opinion" page 9

SSOC Strategic Plan 2022-2024 | 18

148 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24

https://cao-94612.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/SSOC-Agenda-and-Materials-April-25-2022-FINAL.pdf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1v0p3CJDyOOcgii04NPf-U1RfmS9HwCeTFBFBVwFKktA/edit


Public Safety and 
Services Oversight 
Commission (SSOC)
Paula Hawthorn, Chair
Yoana Tchoukleva, Vice Chair
Omar Farmer, Commissioner

November 28, 2023

1

Attachment 12e

149 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



SSOC Commissioners
Michael Wallace (Mayoral)
Omar Farmer (District 2)
Paula Hawthorn,  (District 3)
Yoana Tchoukleva, Vice Chair (District 4)
Carlotta Brown (District 6)
Gloria Bailey-Ray (District 7)**
Sonya Mehta (At-Large)
Vacant: Districts 1 and 5

2

150 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Purpose of Measure Z

“Maintain police and fire services and violence 
prevention and intervention strategies 

to address violent crime 
and to improve public safety in Oakland”3

151 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Oakland Crime Statistics

4

152 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Oakland Crime Statistics: Year to Date

2022     96 Homicides     4,781 Violent Crime Total
2023     94 Homicides     5,781 Violent Crime Total

5

153 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Oakland Crime Statistics

6

154 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Duties of the SSOC
• Review and evaluate the implementation of MZ
• Receive draft performance reviews before evaluator finalizes the report
• Report issues identified in the annual fiscal audit to the Mayor & City Council
• Review annual fiscal and performance audits & evaluations
• Report in a public meeting to the Mayor & City Council on the implementation

of MZ
• Recommend ordinances, laws, resolutions and regulations,  to ensure

compliance with the requirements of MZ
• Provide input on strategies
• Receive semi-annual progress reports from the departments updating the

SSOC on progress toward desired outcomes.
• Make recommendations to City Administrator regarding scope of program

evaluation

7

155 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Agenda for Today’s Presentation

I. How is MZ money being spent?
II. Is MZ money being spent effectively?
III. How has the SSOC implemented its Strategic Plan?
IV. What recommendations does the SSOC have

8

156 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Section I: How is MZ Money Being Spent?
• Data from 2021/2022 Audit (latest available)

• Total revenue (parking tax, parcel tax): $27,726,173

• Total Expenditures:
Police:  11,003,480
Fire:          2,000,000
DVP:     8,287,187

9

157 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Oakland Police Dep’t: 54 Officers (2021/2022 Data) 

• Crime Reduction Team - $4M,  20 officers

• Community Resource Officers - $0.97M, 7 officers

• Intelligence Based Violence Suppression - $1.7M,
6 officers

• Ceasefire - $4M, 21 officers

10

158 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Ceasefire (2021/2022 Data)

• Well researched gun violence prevention program

• MZ pays $4M out of total OPD Ceasefire funding of
$12.6M

• Ceasefire is 3 parts: Police, Community and Social
Services

11

159 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Dep’t of Violence Prevention (2023/2024 Data)

FY 2023/2024
• MZ Funding: $11M
• General Fund: $10M

Three Strategic areas: 58 Programs, 30 
Organizations
• Group & Gun Violence Response
• Gender-Based Violence Response
• Community Healing and Restoration

12

160 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Section II: Is MZ Money Being Spent Effectively?

13

shown malfeasance

161 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Section III. Strategic Plan - Overview

14

1.1 Receive a report on issues 
identified in annual fiscal and 
performance audits that affect 
MZ resources

2.1 Receive an annual 
Ceasefire MZ report

2.5 Receive an annual 
update concerning diversity, 
recruitment, and retention 
for MZ funded positions

1.2 Receive an annual 
report from DVP on GBV 
expenditures

2.2 Receive an annual CRO 
MZ report

2.6 Receive a report on 
success markers for OFD + 
analysis of 911 times

1.3 Receive a report from 
OPD on their ability to 
maintain sufficient 
resources to accomplish 
geo-policing goals

2.3 Receive an annual OPS 
1-3 (aka CRTs) MZ report

3.1 Create a community 
engagement plan

3.2 Create an annual SSOC 
report for joint mtg

1.4 Receive an annual 
report from the SVS on 
geo-policing

2.4 Create a document that 
tracks all recommendations 
from evals

4.1 Consider recommending 
ordinances, resolutions, and 
regulations

162 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Section III. Strategic Plan - Progress

15

1.1 - Report made by 
interim City Administrator at 
April SSOC Mtg, Item 7

2.1 - TBD by OPD at Oct or 
Nov 2023 SSOC Mtg

2.5 - TBD by OPD at Oct or 
Nov 2023 SSOC Mtg

1.2 - Report made by DVP 
at April SSOC Mtg, Item 8

2.2 - TBD by OPD at Oct or 
Nov 2023 SSOC Mtg

2.6 - TBD by OFD at 
October 2023 SSOC Mtg

1.3 - TBD at Oct or Nov 
2023 SSOC Mtg

2.3 - TBD by OPD at Oct or 
Nov 2023 SSOC Mtg

3.1 - See CARE Slide 16
3.2 - See this presentation 

1.4 - Report made by OFD 
at April SSOC Mtg, Item 9

2.4 - In progress by 
Commissioner Farmer

4.1 - Verified Response 
from 2022. See slide 17 for 
2023

163 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Deeper Look into Strategic Plan Part 3:
Community Outreach & Engagement

• Objective 3.1: Consider creating a community
engagement committee to discuss the efficacy of MZ
with members of the public.

• Created in January 2023, The CARE Committee
(Community Activation, Research and Elevation) is made
up of Commissioner Omar Farmer and Vice Chair Yoana
Tchoukleva.

• Held presentations at Beat 22 NCPC (2/15/23), League of
Women Voters (5/9/23), Violence Prevention Coalition
(7/17/23), Grand Lake NCPC (8/16/23), Faith in Action EB
(9/30/23).

• Answered questions, received feedback and ideas for
recommendations.

16

164 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Section IV.  SSOC Recommendations

● Recommendations to improve 911 response times

○ Verified Response (from 2022): 98% of burglary alarms are false = 4.5-6.8 annual 
FTE hours wasted by OPD. Verify all alarms and/or ones from repeat offenders.

○ ASAP to PSAP: a CAD to CAD interface that identifies whether there’s a burglary 
in progress and creates a call for service itself in milliseconds instead of minutes.

○ MACRO Development: improves OPD 911 response times by having non-sworn 
personnel respond to non-violent calls instead of OPD. 

○ Self-triage 911 system: prevent hold times by allowing residents to press 1-OPD, 2-
Fire/Medical, 3-MACRO.

○ Promote direct line to OFD dispatch: prevents 911 hold times and gets people the 
care they need immediately by calling (510) 444-1616 for Fire/Medical 
emergencies. 

17

165 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Section IV.  SSOC Recommendations

● Recs that serve to improve violence prevention outcomes
among youth and young adults:

○ #67 - begin building a restorative city by investing in RJ
centers, like Restore Oakland, and by building a phone app
that maps out existing services (from job opps to housing)
and allows everyone to access them

○ #122 - facilitate partnership b/n Oakland Youth Advisory
Commission (OYAC) and Oakland Police and Community
Youth Leadership Council (OPC-YCL)

18

166 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Section IV. SSOC Recommendations 

● Recs that serve to improve violence prevention outcomes
among youth and young adults:

○ #69/107 - invest in the Neighborhood Opportunity and
Accountability Board (NOAB) so that a greater number of
youth accused of misdemeanors will have a chance to hold
themselves accountable through a restorative justice
process

○ #68 - create a Reentry Hub (one-stop location) where justice-
involved folks can get access to services

19

167 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Section IV. SSOC Recommendations 

● Reduce gender-based violence, shootings and gun-related
violence

○ # 149 - invest $20M in the Department of Violence
Prevention

○ # 36/97/43 – Create a joint OPD and OFD academy for a new
Public Safety Officer position. May help with recruitment,
and personnel shortages.

20

168 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24



Thank you so much! Questions & Comments?

21

169 of 169 SSOC Meeting  5-20-24


	(1) Agenda SSOC 5-20-24
	(4) Minutes SSOC 4-22-24
	(5) Ceasefire Progress Report (draft)
	(5a) Ceasefire Update SSOC May 2024
	(7) SSOC Commissioner Survey
	(8a) FINAL LWVO CAPSTONE REPORT_ to link (003)-1
	(8b) LWVO Commission Chart
	(8c) SSOC Response to LWVO Report
	(8d) SSOC Dashboard - CARE
	(9a) MACRO ad hoc spreadsheet
	(9b)MACRO Ordinance (SSOC draft)
	(10a) Violence Reduction & Emergency Response Measure
	(10b) SSOC Press Release - Endorsement
	(11a) SSOC Dashboard - Initiatives
	(11b) SSOC Dashboard - Agenda Plan
	(12a) SSOC Objective 3.2 - 2024
	(12b) SSOC Joint meeting (2021)
	(12c) SSOC Joint meeting (2022)
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21

	(12d) SSOC-Strategic-Plan (2022)
	(12e) 3.2 SSOC Annual Report (2023)
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21




